Regular City Council Meeting

October 14, 2019
Agenda
7:30 pm Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Approval of Minutes: September 23, 2019

Approval of Bills:

Attorney Bills:

Approval of Agenda

Consent Agenda

1. McHattie Park & Volunteer Park Master Plan Update
2. Street Closure — Trick or Treat

3. Police Department In-Car Cameras

Public Comment
Discussion — Downtown

Fire Chief Report
Police Chief Report

Plante Moran Audit Presentation

I New Business
1. Corrective Action Plan

. Budget

Hr. Manager’s Report
V. Public Comment
V. Council Comments
VI. Adjournment

*Please see reverse side for rules of conduct for public comment at City Council meetings*



City of South Lyon
Regular City Council Meeting
September 23, 2019

Mayor Pelchat called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. _
Mayor Pelchat led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Present: Mayor Pelchat, Councilmembers Kennedy, Kivell, Kurtzweil, Richards, Walton and Parisien
Also, present: City Manager Zelenak, Chief Sovik, Superintendent Vamey, Attorney Hamameh, DDA
Director Donahue and Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Pieper :

Absent- Clerk/Treasurer Deaton

Fire Chief Vogel stepped out for a run
MINUTES —9-9-2019

CM 10-1-19 MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTE
Motion by Kivell, supported by Kénnedy
Motion to approve minutes as presented

VOTE:

BILLS- None
AGENDA

Councilmember Kivell re /
— 1** Division)

CM 10-3-19 MOTION TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA AS AMENDED

Motion by Parisien, supported by Kivell
Motion to approve the agenda as amended

VOTE: MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
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PUBLIC COMMENT

Ryan Lare, 716 Grand Court, South Lyon, Michigan

Lare advises that he haid the pleasure of accompanying Couuellmember Richards to thhards s 1964 High
School reunion held at the Riverbank Golf Course. He goes on to thank the people at Riverbank Golf
Course for having such a wonderful reunion. It was also great to see the High School that is now Bartlett,
and seeing the difference and how time flies but is never forgotten He states that it was nice meeting the

people from 1964 and what an impact they made in South Lyon He goes on to thank Rlchards for the
invitation, adding he and Carl both won a Mum. :

Jim Hamade, 1189 Horseshoe Drive, South Lyon, Michigan

Harnade adyises that he will be holding a City Council Meet and E at Lucas Coney Island at 6:00
Lyon Library will be holding a

erful if everyone in South Lyon

could attend. He also states that thlS meeting will be ._e . é_; d b el 19, as well as the
website. He states that he has launched his socla.i 'Tw1tter) and his email
address is un4SouthLyon@hotmaﬂ com, and fol 111 be announcing his
positions, policies and vision for the future. He goes ding the 24 hours,

' ._ especially the grueling overnight and the entire communjiy ' supportfish, for the American
Cancer Society, Men Who Wear Pmk / s, h . / 4 _ %

' DISCUSSION DOWNTOWN

DDA Dlrector Donahue Ig TS,
October 24, this event / ek
added. He goes on to /}

: gwn Trick or Treatmg on
o . ic af the four corners has been
pent th1s y%ﬁ’to really expand this event.

Norm Fultz will be the ,: ht. & Downtown Lad.les Night Out, November 15%, not

to be confused Wlth a '-‘”-:' y

Plans movipg#é Cool Yule, December 6" & 7th and anew
a i

event, S ' '

He go€ f e say that th %kend Bl “ a' luck to everyone involved, hoping for good

%pkmfest
weather. ‘Fh&Business Surve Tesnonses %due September 30%, we have approxnnately 17 that have
‘ /

4 / S
brmgs a Wealth o ’ '

November Very exeltmg

Councilmember Kurtzweil commends Donahue for getting Gary to agree to come back on the DDA. She
goes on o say that he is one of her favorites, and he is so committed. Gary is.one to work behind the
scenes and gets things done. Just Jook at what he’s done with a Good Day Café. He has a good sense of
trend.

She states that while visiting a client in the downtown, she had to drive around quite a few times just to
find a parking spot. This is a good thing, four years ago, this would not be a problem. She adds that while
she was downtown she noticed quite a bit of things going on, which include...new windows going in to
the Artcraft Building, Dayna Johnston painting phenomenal Halloween scenes on the windows for
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Grande Trunk, 104 Salon getting a new paint job and the strip mall by South Lyon Woods getting a new
parking lot, so that’s a ton of money being dumped in to the city. Incredible the investment going in to

this town in just a small period of time. Kurtzweil congratulates Donahue and the DDA for their hard
worl.

FIRE CHIEF REPORT

Chief Vogel unavailable due to responding to a call.

POLICE CHIEF REPORT

downtown area. Sovik thanks them for working s

NEW BUSINESS

1. 52nd District Court, 1% Division

Judge Law addresses the Council and th

here to go over what they do, how they do
advises that the Court cov
Lake Wixom, Comm

/
Judge Reeds als6/ 1 meil for hav1{g them there. He states that South Lyon is a great town

and that they both lig¢ here. “ontinues by saying that he would also like to commend Chief Sovik
1¢ and his Oficers do for the city. It’s a pleasure to work with them in court.

statutory court so they handle ¢6 am types of cases, along with C1v11 and Criminal cases. All the criminal
cases in the state of Michigan start in the criminal courts. They will then either stop in our court, or they
will go on to Pontiac to be finished by the Circuit Court Judges. He goes on to explain that the 52 Court
is a high volume court, one of the highest in the state, and they do about 50,000 cases a year, Which is a
lot for 3 guys, but we get it done. A lot of the cases are very quick, things like Civil Infractions, speeding
tickets, moving violations and things of that nature. Misdemeanors and more complex civil cases do take
a little more time.

Judge Law adds that the City Prosecutor does a fair job and people leave feeling that they’ve been heard,
even if they didn’t get the result that they were hoping for. Reed goes on to say that South Lyon is a very
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safe community to live in. He goes on to share the statistics of the city. He states that last year South Lyon
had, 29 drunk driving cases, 100 traffic misdemeanors and 49 non-traffic misdemeanors. Reeds states if

you want to see your City Attorney’s in action, these cases are tried on Tuesday, come on in for a tour and
a cup of coffee.

Law goes on to explain that they sincerely mean this, and if a resident has a child that they may want to
bring in, they can be extra grumpy on those days to give them the ramifications on what it is like if you
make a poor choice. He states that they do participate in a number of school programs, including a Court
in School program. Where they actually bring real cases in to the schools. Some of the cases include pre-
trials and sentencing. He goes on to say that they will actually include one or two cases where they know
that someone is going to be cuffed and taken away so that the studepfs gain can see the ramifications of a
poor choice and the consequences. This program will hopefully o see these students before they
come to us as a defendant. Law states that he thinks this is a peram and they are hoping to extend
aping and some of the more
modern problems are in the Middle Schools too. Law at the decis o that these young people are
facing now a days are nothing like what he had to f: i .

is his favorite part of being a Judge? He begins by dis¢ Jsing sentop i he, first send thern
down to the probation department for an interview to get4 : 1 Bi

information about the defendant. He go T udges to try
and prevent them from commitiing anot s favorite thing, and he believes he
speaks for Judge Reeds too, is parttmpatm three judges in the building
participate in the Sobriety Court overseemg . o Court and Veteran Court
Judge Reeds oversees the ¥ 7z will see those defendants
much more often. In the! nonth. They are working with the
probation department. eriod of intensive counseling,
services, probation, meet ing to see the success that we have. Reeds states
that one of the b lation ceremonies, to listen to their remarks and

ey
s 1 the specialty courts really re-charges his

everyone 10/ Vi : | enter to see this event and they will make sure that from
now on the il wallirecei 1ails inviting them to these types of events.

Councilmember Kurt
rate of recidivism, when the
Second, how attentive are youlemg with respect to providing mental health counselling as a component

with respect to substance abuse? Kurtzweil states it’s the Mental Health component she is interested in.

Judge Reeds states that the recidivism rate is half or less. He goes on to say that they track the data 2
years out from graduation and 4 years out from graduation. In a recent development at the State level, in
order to have a Sobriety Court, a Veteran’s Court, a Drug Court you have to be certified by the state. He
advises that they were the first court in the state to get that certification. Recidivism is never perfect, but
it’s definitely better then not having Specialty Court and the numbers do show that. Judge Law states that
when someone is being monitored for 18 months, they generally do well. Law goes on to explain that
they are looking to put something in place for when the 18 months is over. Judge Law goes on to
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Kurtzweil’s second question about Mental Health and how often do they look at that. Kurtzweil questions
how sensitive are the courts to mental health issues? Judge Law states that they are hypervigilant to it, and
goes on to say that this is why they send a defendant to get the reports that they need for sentencing.
Mental health issues is not something that they necessarily can pick up on by just having a conversation
with somebody while in court. We send them to an expert that can interview somebody, go through their
records, do a background check, everything that they need to do and that’s where these things show up.
Councilmeémber Parisien states with drugs and alcohol being an issue in our community she thinks that
any step that is taken to be proactive about stopping unwanted behavior is important. Thank you so much
for everything that you are doing to be proactive and to try and stop the issue before it happens.
Councilmember Kivell states that he agrees, and if you create an envisggnment they will recognize just
how jammed up they can get. They are much more likely to stay '
speaking to the addictive aspect of those other issues, he is del Jis

Judge Reeds goes on to commend workin
that he is very lucky and that they are his

/
K ;',7

City Ma ant ‘4% an inspection perfoxmed by E.G.L. E of the

gan in Jun

: s entrance works was abandoned and beyond repa:Lr This
.
)
O

We have a quote fro |a’ “ovenant |
bid sheets detailing all the t i (ote g is here to answer any questions that you may have. The possible
course of action is to appro icny the purchase and installation of the air handler unit that provides
ventilation and heat for the enffince works by Covenant Environmental in the amount of $50,210.00.

CM 10-4-19 MOTION TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF A NEW AIR HANDLER UNIT

Motion by Kennedy, supported by Kivell

Motion to approve the purchase of the new Air Handler Unit for the entrance works at the Waste
Water Treatment Plant to be installed by Covenant Environmental for the amount of $50,210.00,
as outlined in the current budget under line item 592.557.970

VOTE: MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
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3. Purchase and installation of a new 1050-gallon double wall diesel storage tank that supplies fuel to the
generator set at the Wastewater Treatment Plant

City Manager Zelenak states that the diesel storage tank at the Wastewater Treatment Plant is well passed
its use and in danger of failure. This can cause potential catastrophic problems and should be replaced as
soon as possible. We received three quotes and although Corrigan is not the lowest, they provided the
service for the switching of the tanks. This unplanned expenditure can be purchased out of the building
and equipment maintenance account under 592.557.931 and all quotes are attached for your review.
Possible course of action, is to approve or deny the purchase of the installation of the new double wall
diesel tank for the generator at the Wastewater Treatment Plant for B 01242, plus fuel transferring fees
by Corrigan Qil Company. The lowest bid, STAFCO estimated /}/é fery charges of $350.00, but their
quote did not include installation or the ability to transfer the

e el They do not offer service to
remove the current tank and place the new tank on the existj | ? it pad. The attached motion is for

Al

f Co typically does
d Staff Co about what

CM 10-5-19 MOTION TO APPROVE'PURCHAS
WAL DIESEL STORAGE TANK UNi! 110

Motion by Kivell, supported by

Councilmcr @heﬂ: he d like to compliment Doug on looking at the big picture on
i yasing his decision 1the ini yrchase price. You got what you needed to'do the job and
your decn on the lowest price and then finding out that all these
Ie states that he appreciates Doug doing his due diligence to come
- Ibok like. Kennedy questions if they are still looking at upgrading

i,

Councilmember Richards questons what will happen with the old tank. Doug advised that he questioned
that himself, he did not want to get stuck with it, but it will be our responsibility to deal with that tank.
Richards ask if they would be able to re-sell it. Doug confirms that they would have that option.

Councilmember Kurtzweil would like to compliment Doug on being at the right place at the right time in
order to discover that it was in danger of failure. She goes on to say that this speaks to Doug’s credentials
and his great management decision that the City Manager made in hiring you. You’ve got the training and

the ability to jump on something. We have the right guy in the right place, thank you for the skill set that
you bring to the city.
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4. Purchase and installation of a new security fence for the water tower located at Mill Street

City Manager Zelenak states that the newly refurbished water tower currently has no fencing. As was
discussed with the budget process, we have obtained three quotes and would like to move forward and
have the vinyl-coated 8’ high security fence installed around the perimeter of the base of the tower. This
is an item that we have budgeted for in the current budget year under line item, 592.556.970. All quotes
are attached for your review. He states that additional decorative fence will be added to this project at a
later date. The three quotes are included in your packet. Possible courses of action approve or deny the
purchase of the installation of the new eight foot vinyl coated commercial grade security fence for the
Mill Street water tower for $9,500.00 by DeBord Brother’s Fence Company

Motion by Kivell, supported by Kennedy
Motion to approve the purchase and installati

spcd | - ﬁfl'e ls by promoting the educational mission of the
South Ly6f 1 , ‘attempting to get a charitable gaming license from the State of
Michigan fot yeven il'e holdi ey are asking for the attached resolution to be passed by
‘ i are recdgnized as a non-profit organization in the community. The
xemption letter from the State of Michigan and by-laws of the

ossible course of action is to approve or not approve their request.

he would like the body to know that she participates on this
foundation or this non-profit 45/ board member and she would like excuse herself from discussion as
well as voting even though she does not have a direct interest financially.

Attorney Hamameh states that there should be a motion for Councilmember Parisien to abstain from
voting and participating in this matter.

CM 10-7-19 MOTION TO APPROVE THAT SHE, MARY PARISTEN, REMOVE HERSELF FROM
DISCUSSION, AS WELL AS ABSTAINING FROM VOTING

Motion by Parisien, supported by Walton
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Motion to approve that she, Mary Parisien, remove herself from discussion, as well as abstaining
from voting

VOTE: MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.
€M 10-8-19 MOTION TO APPROVE THE REQUEST FROM THE SOUTH L.YON EDUCATIONAL
FOUNDATION TO BE RECOGNIZED AS A NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION

Motion by Kurtzweil, support by Walton
Motion to approve the request from the South. Lyon Educational Foundation, South Lyon,
Michigan, County of Oakland, to be recognized as a non-profit organization operating in the

BUDGET

MANAGER’S REPORT

City Manager Zelenak advises that the Business Sufy
17 responses. We still have another week for the SUrvey
will be forwarded on to Council as wel g

-’?f?re’

fields are access(f i d :' are discussing‘that and we will be bringing something
ot : e and he will be happy to answer any questions.

curious if we have ample data storage for the police car cameras.

Zelenak adds that we included in the packet information regarding the 8 Mile to 9 Mile Dixboro Road

construction, he goes on to say that the road is just closed for throngh traffic and you will still be able to
access for residents as well as access to Volunteer Park.

Councilmember Kennedy states that we have 17 responses to the business survey at this point. What is
the target population, what percentage does that represent at this point, out of all the businesses that
received the survey do we know? This initially started with taking the inventory to see how many

businesses we actually had out there and then this was pushed out to those businesses. Zelenak states that
it is still less than 10%.
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Councilmember Richards questions that in McHattie Park, what is the completion time for Peerless
Midwest.

Doug advises that according to Ron Beason, who spoke directly with them, they are going to be at the
park tomorrow to finish the install of the meter, once that component is put into place, we then have to be
able to communicate with the meter so we have to have UIS come in to do their end of it, which has
already started which would be the communication with SCADA back at the Wastewater Treatment plant.
They should be out of the way shortly, picking up all the pipe that was there that they had used

temporarily to flush. Then the meter is going to go in. They should be out of there tomorrow or the next
day.

Richards states that he walked down the bank and looked at that 1
less than the previous one which was up to 1,400 gallons a mi
a week, why? Doug advises that it was because we needed tg ol i’s test. He advises that we are

fushing operation and it was much

ound the site where

the new well is in the ground. He asks if they are prepa 3 ere before the
building is erected or is that going to hayg i it 41 i ayillhave concrete
foundation and we are prepping that rig i; ' K mporary structure of’some sort, a
pretty solid structure over that number 4 - i Peerless Midwest is the contractor for

say that we are showing Shia 11 1l pt He states he is looking over

listed. Are there any plans to go

had no ide c that'we 0,0 get. Usually if we get a 20% response, that is
Very gog & survey. Hy s Telie / &értainty do that. This would be sending out
anothef/Z2{) to 300 letters ' 5 the exact same letter

uld have to see if we have emails for every single business
bepotentially opening those up. He states that we can certainly look at
] 1. Parisien states that she cannot speak for the whole body, but this
could be a good use of /// t send out a quick email that we have addresses for and for those
businesses that we don’t, ///4 rsonally go and see them. Zelenak states that we can certainly do that,
it will take quite a bit of time."H¢ advises that we will have to look and see how we can handle the
staffing levels with elections and other things coming up. Parisien adds that the whole point of the survey
was communication to understand where the businesses stand and how they feel about the city of South
Lyon and what we are doing for them. We need to take a proactive measure to send out an email, a
friendly reminder that the due date for the Business Survey is September 30, It doesn’t have to be
elaborate. Zelenak states that he will take a look at it and advises that someone will have to enter every
one of the email addresses, and he will talk with the staff about that and see what time frame it will take.

£
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Councilmember Kivell states that he knows that the addresses were on some documents from early on in

this whole thing, so it’s just a copy and paste to a general blast to everybody. If we got 20 more, we
would be better off than where we are now. He states that he thinks it will be worth it.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Judy Keeling, 62180 Arlington Circle, #5

Keeling states that she went to the park with her Grand Children and she was surprised that the wheel
chair swing is not up yet. She states that she knows that Council dog siit control that, but she is hoping
that it will be up by next spring. She also states that if there is an lse that needs to be done, she
would be happy to help with it. '

Chief Vogel

on to advise that they had a ﬁre Saturday at Michi:
was great. They were assisted by Lyon Township, Gij
to thank the schools for allowing him to have a gator |
plan is to have staff on all weekend and
medical supplies in the gator. We learncs
trying to get a truck through there is imp
really helped.

of medical runs and' small fire and

m the station is too far, The schools
,

COUNCIL COMMENT -
Councilmember Ku %
Kurtzwell states that her con : ing tc j mg on memories of Tedd Wallace, politics can

ut Tede u Wallace s e states that he was a character, she agreed on Ted

W him 6 a/ /n st things but whatever he did, he did it with conviction and

/ . tell of 1 Qf’w Tedd wanted to meet her Dad, so she and her Dad and

Tedd had lunch at s} and it was a great two hours. Kurtzweil tells of how her Dad was so
o ifh the Mayor of South Lyon. He and Tedd chatted endlessly about

careers, schooling, pol Small town Actually, they had a lot in common. She states that

she is ever so thankful to Teg ,
She adds, and as [ recall, my 1744 and I paid for the lunch. Kurtzweil stated that when her father past
several years ago, it was Tedd Wallace that could not have been nicer to her, you really don’t forget what
people do in your time of grief. So I wanted to thank Ted and his family for that. Kurtzweil states that
many of you may not know, that she voluntsers in one capacity or another in helping to keep Paul Baker
Park in good condition for the last 15 years. It was actual her first volunteer project that she took on when
Former Mayor, Jeff Potter, appointed her to the Park and Rec Commission. Over the years the
landscaping has changed, but one thing did not change, Tedd Wallace always thanked me for helping to
maintain the park, every, every year. This year was no different, but the conversation that they had went
beyond a simple thank you. This spring, when she was working in the Park with DPW and Rose, getting
it ready for the Memorial Day Parade. Tedd stopped, he and I had a great conversation and he thanked her
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for working in the park. He then spoke of this days on the Cable Commission and he’s right, he raised a
whole generation of South Lyon residents on Tedd TV. Tedd TV was clean and wholesome, it was about
sports, Pumpkinfest Parade, Christmas Lights and the sub-divisions, making parents proud when they saw
their young athletes on TV, Tedd than said to her, if T am unable to keep an eye on the tree that was
planted for the man that saved my life in St. Croix, could she do it for him. Little did she know, 5 months
later, the torch would be passed to her and that she would be keeping her eye on that tree. She states that
tonight she wants to talk of the good things about Tedd Wallace, they may have bantered a bit, but at the
end of the day, I always respected him. At his funeral mass, Father Stan spoke of that tragic event in St.
Croix. But as she sat there in church all she could hear was keep an eye on that tree. She goes on to say
that whatever memory that the city has for Tedd Wallace, that there i ys0me recognition for his
commitment to the Cable Commission, his commitment to Sports,4ié fbr those that were not at his

to you from me and my husband Ken. Thank you.

Councilmember Walton

speech was very interesting and very
their open house over the weekend, it

herself as a lifetime resident of South Lyon.
£ mentary school without Tedd Wallace in it.

t, they ake puiting all new frontage on them. He goes on to say thank you and
=f the plaza. He goes on to talk about 113 North Lafayette. He has
gone over there and taken pigliiio PHe goes on to say that he is absolutely flabbergasted, they are doing a
beautiful job and it has been atéhitecturally approved. Richards then goes on to praise our City Manager
for his endeavor at the Farmers Market Location with the pink chair. It was beyond the call of duty for
this event for our city. He did stop by to say Okay and best wishes, be safe and good luck. He goes on to
talk about the Historic Tour in Northville that is going on tomorrow. This is an annual affair. He goes on
to talk about Tedd Wallace, he states that after the last Council meeting we all left here. He goes on to say
that he was probably the last person to see Tedd alive. Richards had gone up to the Gas Station, Wallace
was up there getting a lottery ticket. His voice seemed a little week, but he appeared to be in good spirits.
We had a nice discussion talking about Tedd TV and South Lyon Politics. Tedd was a lifetime member of
the Historical Society, along with his wife, Ellen. At the Historical Society meeting last week, we
discussed mortality and that old saying, here today and gone tomorrow. We discussed our obligation to
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our stewardship and to our historic duty to preserve the records of the City of South Lyon. Anyway, Tedd
was a friend to all and we will all miss his spirit, his sincerity, his leadership and his grasp of the big
picture and the bigger issue at hand. And finally, Richards goes on to say that when he was injured, it was
Tedd that was at my house and knocking on the door to see what he could do. Tedd was one in a million.

Councilmember Xennedy

On a sad note, almost 2 weeks ago we lost a life-long resident of South Lyon, Tedd Wallace. A husband,
father, grandfather and former teacher, council member and mayor for this city who will be missed by
many. It was impressive to see the number of folks who attended Tedd’s funeral and just as impressive
was the number of businesses and individuals from our community that contributed food and other items
for the gathering afterwards. What a great community we live in, ibther note Kennedy wanted to
congratulate our City Manager, Paul Zelenak, for his 24 hour ghlighting breast cancer awareness
and raising funds for the American Cancer Society. He says’ ed to get a couple of hours of sleep

but it was certainly for a very Worthwhﬂe cause. He

Buers for his 27 years of service to this communi i responsible for keeping
all of our equipment in a safe and reliable operati us at the end of this
week and while I don’t believe he is planning to fully L 84 sue some other
opportunities. We certainly wish him the very best as hi /' S spf A i ' pommitment and

7 September 24 the Salem-South Lyon
7:00pm to 9:00pm. This session will

ook at Facebook pageé, what do they say, what are their
at currently sit on Council. Who are the individuals that

e ;//}:n( how do they fit commumty s needs. [ won’t tell you who to vote
“thid fon of what video’s to look at. Parisien states that we always need
volunteers, and thank you Gaty Pagin and welcome aboard. Pumpkinfest needs volunteers. Cultural Arts
Commission is in need of volunteers, spread the work. She goes on to thank Tim, it’s great to have you
here to thank you for all your years of service. He has provided us with numerous municipal transactions
that we have had and you have never failed us. You have been fantastic! Best of luck to you in Ann

Arbor. Thoughts and prayers go out to Tedd Wallace’s family.

Councilmember Kivell

Kivell states that he would like to thank Chief Vogel for the relationships that he’s built with our
neighbors. Saturday’s fire at the Tube Mill, and the response time for Lyon Township and Green Oak
Township were staggeringly good. Knowing people have our back like that speaks volumes of Rob. He
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goes on to say that Tedd and his mother Norma were two of the people that he first came in contact with
when he first went to City Hall, back in 1987. Not too terribly long after that Tedd had asked him to be on
the Parks Commission as well. Tedd was always very proud of the cable show and that was remarkably
valuable for a community of our size. People used to complain to City Council about getting another
cable company, but we didn’t have densities to justify all the costs of rewiring the city. He goes on to say
how many people and their relationships with Tedd was because Tedd was their teacher. Just by the
number of people that were at his funeral makes it pretty clear on how consequential his time in this
community had been. Rest in Peace and thank you for all you have done. Kivell goes on to thank Tim for
all he has done for us and he hopes that Ann Arbor realizes the gift that they are getting. He tells Lisa, that

Mayor Peichat

is a major player here in town. It
1, and we wish him the best. He

we ever do that TV show,

Thank vou to Gary Fagin, while he mostly operates in the bag
will be nice to have him back. Pelchat goes on to thank Do

Mayor Dan Pelchat Deputy Clerk Judy Pieper
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September 2019 Payroll Report

Departrnent Pay Rate Reg Hours | O.T. Hours Reg Pay O.T. Pay Misc. Total Pay Motes
Administration
] (/"“

$ - $ - b B )

Brandon, C. 18.4800 108.50 g 202356 | § - fi 2,023.56
Carson, Michael R, 17.8100 78.50 § 1,368.09 | § - 1,388.08
Deatan, {., 5,327.34 5,327.34
Donohue, R. 5,680.74 5,680.74
Cudek, L. 18.5000 ©5.00 1,757.50 1,757.50
Lanning, W. 12.3600 25.25 312.09 312.09
Pieper, Judy 20.9200 160.00 7.00 3347.20 | & 219.66 3 3,568.86
Tiarmnan, P. 4,538.48 $ 4,538.46
Zelenak, Paul 7,682.32 3 7,602.32
TOTAL: Administration 468.25 7.00[ % 32,087.30 | $ 21966 | § - $ 32,306.96

Department Pay Rate Reg Hours | O.T. Hours Reg Pay O.T. Pay Misc. Total Pay Notes
Cemetery
Bjerke, Michael 12.8300 24.00 § 307.22 307.92
Brannun, L. 13,6500 74.00 $ 1,010.10 1,010.10
Lemke, John N, 12.8300 74.00 24942 048.42
Merritt, J. 12.8300 74.00 049.42 940.42
Wauford, S. 12.8300 66.00 846.78 B 846.78
Wedesky, J. W. 12.8300 52.00 867,16 3 B67.16
Williamseon,N. 12.8300 50,00 641.50 ] 641.50
TOTAL: Cemetery 414.00 0.00 5372.30 0.00 0.00 5372.30

Department Pay Rate Reg Hours | O.T. Hours Reg Pay 0.T. Pay Misc. Total Pay Notes
Police
Baaki, D. 42.7397 160.00 10.00| § 683835 | § 65263 $ 7,490.99
Baker, A, 35.6461 168.00 4.00( % 5958.54 | § 218.49 $ 6,207.04
Baker, J. 302107 164,00 25.00| $ 6,430.55 | $ 1,379.31 3 7,809.86 P
Barkour, R. 35.6461 168.00 16.00 5,088.54 | § 870.51 6,859.05 4

“|Baren, K. 10.3000 B84.00 g 865.20 865.20 !
Faught, C. 39.2107 168.00 10.50] § 658740 | $ 620.68 7,217.08
Hoydic, § 35.6461 160.00 35.00] & 5,703.38| % 1,911.81 761518
Jacobs, J. 23.4398 168.00 700 % 303790 | % 246.12 4,184.02
Kelley, W, 10.3000 88.C0 908.40 906.40
Krettlin, F. 12.3600 25.50 315.18 315,18
Krettlin, F. 18.6500 15.00 279.75 279.75
Laraway, P. 18.6500 16,00 298,40 288.40
Ley, K. 18.6800 16.00 298.40 B 288.40
Raap, T. 35.6461 168.00 8.00 5,888.54 435.25 6,423.80
Salvers, B. 19.0300 160.00 8.00] § 3,044.80 228,36 [ 3,273,186
Schneemann, J. 23.4399 160.00 15.00 3,750,38 527.40 B 4,277.78
Sederiund, C, 39,2107 160.00 18.00] § 62737113 1,139.43 ] 7413.14
Sovik, C. 7.645.76 5 7,645.76
Sroufe, T. 35.6461 160.00 20.50 5,703.38 1.119.77 B 6,823.15
Stevens, T. 35.6461 92.00 3,279.44 - $ 499045 | $ 8,268.89 |Vacation Payout
Tomanek, J. 35.6461 160.00 5,703,38 - $ . 151.82 5,865.20 |Payroll Correction from 8/2/19
Walton, T. 35,6461 160.00 25.50 5703.38 1,387.37 7.080.75
Wilcox, W. 18.8500 14.00 261.10 - 261.10
Wittrock,, M. 39.2107 168.00 10.00 6,687.40 597 .54 7,184.93
Total: Police 2802.50 211.50] § 98,379.27 11,343.67 | § 5142.27 | $ 114,865.21
*Please note 2 pay periods in the month of Seplember 20119
[ | \

Page 1




[} L3

Department Pay Rate Reg Hours | O.T. Hours Reg Pay 0.7. Pay Misc. Total Pay Notes
Fire
_ |Armstrong, C. 23,5300 36.75 864.73 ] B864.73
“"|Buchanan, T 161100 10.00 161,70 5 161.10
( Conrad, C. 19.6800 84.75 1,864.68 5 1,864.68 f
D'Ambrosio, A. 10.4900 55.25 ] 579.57 ) 579,57
Dabrick, Z. 16.1100 63.50 1,022.99 ] 1,022.89
Good, A. 16,1100 48.00 773.28 773.28
Hopkins, N. 8.7300 7.50 72.88 72.98
Kaczos, N. 16.1100 11.00 177.21 177.21
Laitinen, D. 16.1100 84,75 3 1,043.12 1,043,12
Madsen, W. 18,1100 22.50 362.48 362.48
Matthews, A. 22.2900 58.00 B 1,292.82 § 1,292.82
Mayer, D, 9.7300 38.50 355.18 § 355.15
McGahan, K 18.5800 113.00 2,099.54 $ 2,099.54
MeGillen, T 18.5800 19.00 B 353.02 L 353.02
McGowan, C. 16.1100 2.00 ] 3222 32.22
Moynihan, B. 22.2800 46.50 ki 1,014.20 B 1,014.20
Mielsen, S, 9.7300 54.00 525.42 525.42
Noechel, J. 18.5800 33.00 613,14 613.14
Tooman, B. 18.5800 49.25 915.07 915.07
Viiet, A. 17.3300 24.00 5 415.82 415.82
Vogel, R. 3,307.70 3,307.70
Weir, M. 2,153.84 b 2,153.84
Wilson, T, 22.2900 47.00 1,047.63 $ 1,047.63
Total: Fire 895.25 21,047.78 $ - 5 21,047.78
Department Pay Rate | RegHours |O.T. Hours Reg Pay O.T. Pay Misc. Total Pay Notes
D.P.W. -
Abramowicz, J. 24.6700 160.00 $ 3,947.20 | § - 3 3,947.20
Archey, Je. 25,8700 160.00 22000 % 4139.20 | % 869.66 | $ 315.00 | § 5,323.86 |On-call pay
Brock, R. 27.4500 160.00 9.00 $ 439200 | $ 380.97 3 4772.97
Buers, D, 25.6500 160.00 $ 4,104.00 | $ - 5 1,600.00 5,704.00 |Longevify Pay
Dentai, F. 25.8700 160.00 15.50] $ 4,139.20 608.311 % 925.00 5,673.51 |On-call, Longevity pay
Jamison, M. 20.8100 160.00 $ 3,329.60 - g 3,328.60
—.. [Moritz, M. 24,2700 160.00 5 3,883.20 - $ 3,883.20 i
b A
( _.sJPaver, V. 23.8700 160.00 12.50| $ 3,819.20 | § 456.63 | § 315.00 | § 4,590.83 |On-call pay ( =
Piasecki, T. 23.8700 180.00 17.60 3,818.20 | § 617.27 | § 40500 | $ 4,841.47 |On-Call pay -
Race, J. 23.7200 160.00 15.00 3,795.20 | % 533,70 3 4,328.90 .
Valencia, A. 22.9200 160.00 36687.20 [ $ - $ 3,667.20
Total: D.P.W. 1,760.00 91.00 | § 43,035.20 | § 3,467.53 | § 3,560.00 | § 50,062.73
Department Pay Rate Reg Hours |Q.T. Hours Reg Pay Q.T. Pay Misc. Total Pay Notes
W& W.W.
Armstrong, C. 24.8000 160 16.00| § 3,968.00 | $ 59520 [ & 315.00 [ % 4,878.2¢ |On-call pay
Beason, R. 31.5800 160 8.00| § 505280 | § 388.16 $ 5,440.98
Blankstrom, D. 22,4900 160 450! § 3,59840 | § 15181 | § 31500 ] % 4,065.21 |On-call pay
On-call, Longevity pay, Payroil
Ciaramitaro, J. 27.7800 180 8.00| % 444480 | § 38349 | § 2,059.49 | § 6,887.78 |Correction 08/02/19
DeHoff, T. 12,3800 86 g 1,186.56 ) $ 1,186.56
Erdmann, Kevin 25.5000 160 g 4,080.00 | & - 4,080.00
Gehringer, D. 28.2800 180 12.50] § 4,624.80 | § B41.23 | % 365.00 5,731.03 |Cn-call pay
Lawrence, E. 18.4800 160 2,956.80 2,956.80
Popravsky, P. 23.0800 160 3,682.80 | § - 3 3,602.80
Varney, Douglas 7,307.70 3 7,307.70
Total: W.& W.W. 1376.00 57.00] § 40,812.66 | § 2,359.89 | % 3,054.49 | & 46,227.04
Grand Total 7,716.00 366.50 | $ 240,734.51 | $ 17,390.74 | § 11,756.76 | § 269,382.01

*Please note 2 pay periods in the month of September 2019
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AGENDA NOTE

Consent Agenda Item #{

MEETING DATE: August 26,2019

PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: City Manager
AGENDA TOPIC: McHattie Park & Volunteer Park Master Plan Update

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: We have budgeted $10,000 in the 2019-2020 budget to
update the Landscape Architectural Master Plan for Volunteer Park and McHattie Park.
We solicited services from Russel Design to update the plan. Their firm previously did
the plans for both parks. _

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:. Landscape
Architectural Master Plan Update Services Agreements for McHattie Park $4,200 and
Volunteer Park $4,700.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Landscape Architectural Master Plan Update
Services Agreements for McHattie Park ($4,200) and Volunteer Park ($4,700). The

funds for the work will be taken out of Parks and Recreation Professional Services Acct.
101-690-801. '

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion by » supported by
to approve the Landscape Architectural Master Plan Update
Services Agreements for McHattie Park ($4,200) and Volunteer Park ($4,700). The funds

for the work will be taken out of Parks and Recreation Professjonal Services Acct.
101-690-801.

i



RUSSELL DESIGN

LANDSCAPE ARCMITECTURE
Design B Planning

' OV 4V 4
SS9

July 22, 2019
REV: September 16, 2019

Mr. Paul Zelenak

City Manager, City of South Lyon
335 S. Warren Street

South Lyon, Michigan 48178

RE: Landscape Architectural Master Plan Update Services

for McHattie Park

South Lyon, Michigan
Dear Paul:
We are excited to assist you, commission members and the City of South Lyon with the schematic
master plan update for McHattie Park. We also understand our scope of work will include the preparation
of an estimate of probable construction costs.
We also understand that site plan approval is not required for the project.

We have assumed we will attend a meeting with the parks and recreation commission for approvals.

If required, we will attend meetings with the planning commission and the city council to present the
approved master plan revisions for informational purposes only.

A. Data Collection and Base Development

1. We will attend a project kick-off meeting shall be arranged to fully ascertain project scope,
communication procedures, budget and scheduling. One meeting is included in this proposal.

2. We assume the planning commission will forward programming components for the playground
enhancements to our office.

B. Topographic Survey and Boundary Survey

1. We assume a topographic and boundary survey will not be necessary for the master plan update.
C. Conceptual Master Plan

The updated master plan shall include; but not limited to,

Adding existing surface parking lot from McHattie Street

Adding a new surface lot on the newly acquired property at McMunn Street

Designating an area for new swing sets; including an accessible swing

Adding accessible routes to all playground features

Deleting the multi-purpose building (Farmers Market)

We assume the parking lot adjacent to the Farmer's Market will be modified to reflect a future
splash pad or water feature.

« We assume the existing curb cut from Pontiac Trail will be used to enter the park.

» @& & & @ o

114 Rayson Street W Sulte 2A ® Northville Ml 48167 WM Phone: 248 374 3222 m www.russelldesign.net
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Mr. Paul Zelenak

1.  We will attend a parks and recreation commission meeting to present the conceptual master
plan alternatives. One meeting is included in this proposal,

D. Preliminary Master Plan

The Preliminary Master Plan will be a mounted illustrative graphic refinement that will incorporate
comments from the commission into the preliminary master plan.

The following tasks will be completed:
1. Prepare plan graphic to portray the design intent and character.

2. We will assist the commission with the development of an overall phasing plan and identifying the
phase one area.

3. We will prepare a statement of probable construction costs for phase one.

4. We will work with city staff, the commission and user groups to prepare maintenance costs for the
proposed phase one improvements.

5. We will attend a meeting with the parks and recreation commission to present the master plan and
estimate. One meeting is included in this proposal.

6. If necessary, we will attend a follow-up meeting with the commission to present the revised
preliminary master plan for approval.

7. We will attend a city council meeting to present final preliminary master plan and probable
construction costs for phase one. One meeting is included in this proposal.

8. We will provide one complete set of preliminary master plan documents {.pdf format) to you for
distribution to committee members.

E. Compensation

1. Our proposed fee to provide services outlined in Item A through D shall be billed as a lump sum
fee of $4,200.00.

2. Payment for services would be invoiced monthly as a percent of our total fee as follows
Data Collection through Conceptual Design $1,800.00
Preliminary Master Plan $2.400.00
3. We have not included the following items in our proposal:
a. Geotechnical Borings and Testing
b. Horticultural samples or testing of topsoil

c. Topographic Survey
d. Boundary Survey

We thank you for this invitation to be involved with this project and hope that this proposal meets with
your approval. Our firm will provide you with the highest quality of professional services and we look
forward to working with you on this project.
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Mr. Paul Zelenak

If we can provide you with any additional information or answer any questions regarding our proposed
services, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,
RUSSELL DESIGN, INC.

Weprisa—

Marc R. Russell, RLA
Principal
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Mr. Paul Zelenak

HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
(Valid through December 31, 2019)

Personnel

Principal................... 160.00
Landscape Architect ... 100.00
Landscape Architect 1l....85.00
Clerical..................... 4500

Billing rates are to remain constant through December 315t of each year. Services
covered by this agreement that are incomplete, through no fault of the Landscape
Architect, as of December 31t in the year of the date of the agreement, shall be
compensated at new rates and the amounts of compensation shall be equitably adjusted.

Reimbursable Expenses

Reimbursable expenses have been estimated at approximately $500.00 and will be
invoiced in addition to professional services and are expenses incurred as a necessary part
of producing the work and shall include:

All outside reproduction will be billed at cost plus a 10% mark-up, all other items (i.e.
postage, express mail, deliveries and in-house reproduction) will be billed at cost as
necessary to perform the services listed herein.

Local automobile travel throughout southeast Michigan as necessary to perform the work
specified herein is included in this proposal.

Any other long-distance travel expenses necessary to complete the project as approved

by Owner will be billed at actual cost or the current federal tax rate, whichever is
applicable.

Reimbursable expenses would be invoiced per the attached rate schedule.
Additional Services

Additional services beyond those outlined in this proposal would be invoiced hourly per
the attached rate schedule.
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Mr. Paul Zelenak

STATEMENTS

Fees for Professional Services shall be billed the 1st of each month. Reimbursable Costs (if applicable) shall be
billed with fee invoices.

ACCOUNTS
Accounts are dug and payable net 30 days from two business days following the date of invoice at our office.
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

Drawings and other documents prepared by Russell Design, Inc. (RDI and/or RDI's subcoentractor) pursuant to
this Agreement shall become the property of the Client upon completion or termination of this Agreement and
shall be delivered to Client within 30 days of any request for same by Client. However, none of these shall be
used on other projects except by written agreement with RDI. One copy of all plans and specifications will be
provided to the Client in both graphic and digital format.

CREDITS / ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

RDI shall be given proper credit and acknowledgments for all services including, but not limited to: planning,
design, and implementation. Proper credit shall be defined as being named by the Client or their agent in such
circumstances as censtruction identification boards, and, if appropriate, promotional materials and brochures.
Such credit is not meant to infer that RDI need be identified on park signage or referred to in future
publications.

INDEMNIFICATION

Landscape Architect accepts ail risks associated with, and shall be liable for any injury to the Landscape
Architect and/or others, as well as for any property damage incurred by the Landscape Architect andfor others,
occurring on account of the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Landscape Architect in rendering
professional services under this agreement. Consistent with this liability, Landscape Architect agress to
indemnify, pay on behalf of, and hold harmless the Client, its elected and appointed officials and employees,
and all others working on its behalf from and against any claims, demands, suits, losses and settlements,
including reasonable attorney fees, to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the
Landscape Architect. The Landscape Architect shall not be obligated to indemnify the Client for the Client's
own negligence.

ARBITRATION

All claims, disputes and other matters in question between the parties to this Agreement shall be subject to and
decided by arbitration in accordance with the rules of the Commercial American Arbitration Association
currently in effect, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.

Demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other party to this Agreement and with the American
Arbitration Assaciation. A demand for arbitration shall be made within

a reasonable time after the claim, dispute or other matter in question has risen. In no event shall the demand
for arbitration be made after the date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim,
dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statutes of limitations.

No arbitraticn arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall include, by consoclidation, joinder or in any other
manner, an additional persen or entity not a signing party to this Agreement, except by written consent
containing a specific reference to this Agreement signed by Client, RDI, and any other person or entity sought
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te be joined. Consent to arbitration involving an additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to
arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not described in the written consent or with a person
or entity not named or described therein. The foregoing agreement to arbifrate and other agreement to arbitrate
with an additional person or entity duly consented to by the parties to this Agreement shall be specifically
enforceable in accordance with applicable law in any couri having jurisdiction thereof.

The award rendered by the arbitrater or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered uponitin
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

Client and RDI agree that any disputes, claims, or other matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement
shall first be submitted in writing to the other party in an attempt to settle these matters before pursuing other
legal actions. The communication shall clearly state the problem or concern, allow sufficient time (7 calendar
days) for a written response, and culminate in a face-to-face meeting to determine if a course of remedial action
is possible. In no event shall this process take more than 30 days. The communications shall indicate whether
the party is willing to submit the dispute io non-binding mediation with the cost of same to be equally shared,
and, if so, the identity and cost of the parties’ proposed mediator. Upon the parties agreeing to such mediation,
including the mediator and a timetable for completion, pursuit of other legal actions shall be deferred until the
mediation has been completed.

ATTORNEY'S FEES

Should any legal proceeding be commenced between the parties to this Agreement seeking to enforce and of
its provisions, including, but not limited to, fee provisions, the predominantly prevailing in such proceeding shall
be entitled, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to a reasonable sum for attorney’s and expert
witnesses’ fees, which shall be determined by the court of forum in such a proceeding or in a separate action
brought for that purpose. For purposes of this provision, “prevailing parly” shall include a party which dismisses
an action for recovery hereunder in exchange for payment of the sum allegediy due, performance of covenants
allegedly breached, or consideration substantially equal to the relief sought in the action or proceeding.

TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon not less than thirty days written netice should the other
party fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of

this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating the termination or should project funding be withdrawn or
not awarded. Accordingly, in the event such funding is not

available to client or is withdrawn, RDI shall be compensated for such work as has been duly performead
pursuant to this Agreement prior to the date of notification of termination for such reasons.

PARTIAL SERVICES

In the event that the Client contracts with RDI for partial professional services or that this Agreement is
terminated prior to the completion of full professional services by RDi, and/or assigned sub-consuliants,

including design development, construction documents and construction phase, the Client agrees to

hold harmless, indemnify and defend RDI andfor assigned sub-consultants, from and against any and all
claims, liabilities, losses, damages and costs, including but not limited to costs of defense, arising out of the
modification, misinterpretation and misuse of the plans and specifications in the completion of this project by
others or arising out of any reuse of the plans and specifications on any other project, excepting
only those liabilities, losses, damages and costs caused by the negligence of RD! and/or assigned sub-
consultants.

SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS AND SUBCONTRACTORS
It is mutually understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be binding upon the Client and its successors

and assigns and upon RD], its successors and assigns. Neither party shall assign nor transfer its interest in this
Agreement or any part therecf without the written consent of the other party.
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RDI is responsible for all work and services required under this Agreement, including any work and services
described in this Agreement as being provided by or through any assigned sub-consultant. If sub-consultant
fails to perform any of the work or services described herein, RD! remains obligated to perform such work and
services, or hire another qualified subcontractor to perform subject to written notice to the Client and consent of
the Client to such assignment of work 10 a new subcontractor. In all events, the Client is not in any way
obligated in law or equity to pay any sums to assigned sub-consultants under this Agreement or otherwise, The
obligation to pay for any work or services perfarmed by assigned sub-consultants benefiting the Client shall be
solely that of RDI. RDI agrees to indemnify and pay for the defense of the Client in the event of any claims
made by assigned sub-consultants of RDI, which include the Client as a named defendant.

SCHEDULE

The Client shall approve time limits established by the schedule. RDI or the Client shall not, except for
reasonable cause and causes beyond the control of RDI and the Client, exceed time limits established by the
schedule approved by the client.

COMMUNICATIONS

Except as may otherwise be provided in the construction contract documents, or when the Client and contractor
have authorized direct communications shall primarily communicate through RDI. Communicaticns by and with
RDI's consultants shall be through RDI.

Causes of action betwesn the parfies to this Agreement pertaining to acts or failures to act shall be deemed to
have accrued and the applicable statutes of limitations shall commence to run as provided by law.

This Agreement represents the entire and integraied agreement between Client and RDI and supersedes all
prior negotiations, representations and agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be amended
only by written instrument signed by both Client and RDI.

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor of
a third-party against either the Client or RDI.

For purposes of this Agreement, the follewing words and phrases shall have the meanings indicated. Terms,
Words and phrases not separately defined shall have the meaning customarily assigned to them in the context
of public works and improvement contracts by local units of government.

"Assist" shail mean RDI preparing, providing and revising documents as necessary for Client reviews and
approvals.

"Contract documents” shall mean all pians, specifications, bid documents, contracts, contract conditions,
bonds, insurance cestificates and policies and other writings relate to the actual construction of the project
which is the subject of this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that as of this Agreement, the identity, terms
and cenditions of the contract document have not been determined.

This Agreement has been accepted and signed by RDI below, If this Agreement meets with your approvai,
please sign below and return one capy for our files.

Russell Design, Inc. Approved and Accepted

By:

Title:

Date




RUSSELL DESIGN

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
Design W Planning

i oV O oV
S22 %

July 22, 2019
REV: September 16, 2019

Mr. Paul Zelenak
City Manager, City of South Lyon
335 5. Warren Street
South Lyon, Michigan 48178
RE: Landscape Architectural Master Plan Update Services
for Volunteer Park
Scuth Lyon, Michigan
Dear Paul:
We are excited to assist you, commission members and the City of South Lyon with the schematic
master plan update for Volunteer Park. We also understand our scope of work will include the
preparation of an estimate of probable construction costs.
We also understand that site plan approval is not required for the project.

We have assumed we will attend a meeting with the parks and recreation commission for approvals.

If required, we will attend meetings with the planning commission and the city council to present the
approved master plan revisions for informational purposes only.

A. Data Collection and Base Development

1. We will attend a project kick-off meeting shall be arranged to fully ascertain project scope,
communication procedures, budget and scheduling. One meeting is included in this proposal.

B. Topographic Survey and Boundary Survey
1. We assume a topographic and boundary survey will not be necessary for the master plan update.
C. Conceptual Master Plan
The updated master plan shall include; but net limited to,
Moving baseball fields to north of drain.
Moving soccer, lacrosse and practice football fields to south of the drain.
Designating an area for accessible playground
Adding accessible routes to all fields and playground

Relocating future restroom closer to the playground
Modify parking lot north of the drain to accommadate ball fields.

1. We will attend a parks and recreation commission meeting to present the conceptual master
plan alternatives. One mesting is included in this proposal.

114 Rayson Street W Suite 2A B MNorthville Ml 48167 B Phono: 248 374 3222 m www.russelldesign.net
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D. Preliminary Master Plan

The Prefminary Master Plan will be a mounted illustrative graphic refinement that will incorporate
commenis from the commission into the preliminary master plan,

The following tasks will be completed:
1. Prepare plan graphic to portray the design intent and character.

2. We will assist the commission with the development of an overall phasing plan and identifying the
phase one area.

3. We will prepare a statement of probable construction costs for phase one.

4. We will work with city staff, the commission and user groups to prepare maintenance costs for the
proposed phase one improvements.

5. We will attend a meeting with the parks and recreation commission to present the master plan and
estimate. One meeting is included in this proposal.

8. If necessary, we will attend a follow-up meeting with the commission to present the revised
preliminary master plan for approval.

7. We will attend a city council meeting to present final preliminary master plan update and probable
construction costs for phase one. One meeting is included in this proposal.

8. We will provide one complete set of preliminary master plan documents (. pdf format) to you for
distribution to committee members.

E Compensation

1. Our proposed fee to provide services outlined in ltem A through D shall he hilled as a lump sum
fee of $4,700.00.

2. Payment for services would be invoiced monthly as a percent of our total fee as follows
Data Collection through Concepiual Design $2,000.00
Preliminary Master Plan $2,700.00
3. We have not included the following items in our proposal:
a. Geotechnical Borings and Testing
b. Horticultural samples or testing of topsoil
c. Topographic Survey
d. Boundary Survey
We thank you for this invitation to be involved with this project and hope that this proposal meets with

your approval. Our firm will provide you with the highest quality of professional services and we look
forward to working with you on this project.
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If we can provide you with any additional information or answer any questions regarding our proposed
services, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,
RUSSELL DESIGN, INC.

WP seaL—

Marc R. Russell, RLA
Principal
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HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
(Valid through December 31, 2019)

Personnel

Principal................... 160.00
Landscape Architect ... 100.00
Landscape Architect 11....85.00
Clerical..................... 45.00

Billing rates are to remain constant through December 315 of each year. Services
covered by this agreement that are incomplete, through no fault of the Landscape
Architect, as of December 315t in the year of the date of the agreement, shall be
compensated at new rates and the amounts of compensation shall be equitably adjusted.

Reimbursable Expenses

Reimbursable expenses have been estimated at approximately $500.00 and will be
invoiced in addition to professional services and are expenses incurred as a necessary part
of producing the work and shall include:

All outside reproduction will be billed at cost plus a 10% mark-up, all other items (i.e.
postage, express mail, deliveries and in-house reproduction) will be billed at cost as
necessary to perform the services listed herein.

Local automobile travel throughout southeast Michigan as necessary to perform the work
specified herein is included in this proposal.

Any other long-distance travel expenses necessary to complete the project as approved
by Owner will be billed at actual cost or the current federal tax rate, whichever is
applicable.

Reimbursable expenses would be invoiced per the attached rate schedule.
Additional Services

Additional services beyond those outlined in this proposal would be invoiced hourly per
the attached rate schedule.
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STATEMENTS

Fees for Professional Services shall be bilied the 1st of each month. Reimbursable Costs (if applicable) shall be
billed with fee invoices.

ACCOUNTS
Accounts are due and payable net 30 days from two business days following the date of invoice at our office.
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

Drawings and other documents prepared by Russell Design, Inc. (RDI and/or RDI's subcontractor) pursuant to
this Agreement shall become the property of the Client upon completion or termination of this Agreement and
shall be delivered to Client within 30 days of any request for same by Client. However, none of these shall be
used on ather projects except by written agreement with RDI. One copy of all plans and specifications will be
provided to the Client in both graphic and digital format.

CREDITS / ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

RDI shall be given proper credit and acknowiedgments for all services including, but not limited te: planning,
design, and implementation. Proper credit shall be defined as being named by the Client or their agent in such
circumstances as construction identification boards, and, if appropriate, promotional materials and brochures.
Such credit is not meant to infer that RDI need be identified on park signage or referred to in fulure
publications.

INDEMNIFICATION

Landscape Architect accepts all risks associated with, and shall be liable for any injury to the Landscape
Architect andfor others, as well as for any property damage incurred by the Landscape Architact and/or others,
oceurring on account of the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Landscape Architect in rendering
professional services under this agreement. Consistent with this liability, Landscape Architect agrees to
indemnify, pay on behalf of, and hold harmless the Client, its elected and appointed officials and employees,
and all others working on its behalf from and against any claims, demands, suits, losses and settlements,
including reasonable attorney fees, to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the
Landscape Architect. The Landscape Architect shall not be obligated to indemnify the Client for the Client’s
own negligence.

ARBITRATION

All claims, disputes and other matters in question between the parties to this Agreement shall be subject to and
decided by arbitration in accordance with the rules of the Commercial American Arbitration Association
currently in effect, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.

Demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other party to this Agreement and with the American
Arbitration Association. A demand for arbitration shall be made within

a reasonable time after the claim, dispute or other matter in question has risen. In no event shall the demand
for arbitration be made after the date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim,
dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statutes of limitations.

No arbitration arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall include, by consolidation, joinder or in any other
manner, an additional person or entity not a signing party to this Agreement, except by written consent
containing a spacific reference to this Agreement signed by Client, RDI, and any ofher persan or entity sought
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to be joined. Consent to arbitration involving an additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to
arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not described in the written consent or with a person
or entity not named or described therein. The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreement to arbitrate
with an additional person or entity duly consented to by the parties to this Agreement shall be specifically
enforceable in accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

Client and RDI agree that any disputes, claims, or other matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement
shall first be submitted in writing to the other party in an attempt to settle these matters before pursuing other
legal actions. The communication shall clearly state the problem or concern, aliow sufficient time (7 calendar
days) for a written response, and culminate in a face-to-face meeting to determine if a course of remedial action
is possible. In no event shall this process take more than 30 days. The communications shall indicate whether
the party is willing to submit the dispute to non-binding mediation with the cost of same to be equally shared,
and, if so, the identity and cost of the parties’ proposed mediator. Upon the parlies agreeing to such mediation,
including the mediator and a timetable for completion, pursuit of other legal actions shall be deferred until the
mediation has been completed.

ATTORNEY’S FEES

Should any legal proceeding be commenced betwaen the parties to this Agreement seeking to enforce and of
its provisions, including, but not limited to, fee provisions, the predominantly prevailing in such proceeding shall
be entitled, in additicn to such other relief as may be granted, to a reasonable sum for attorney's and expert
witnesses’ fees, which shall be determined by the court of forum in such a proceeding or in a separate action
brought for that purpose. For purpeses of this provision, “prevailing party” shall include a party which dismisses
an aclion for recovery hereunder in exchange for payment of the sum allegedly dug, performance of covenants
allegedly breached, or consideration substantially equal to the relief sought in the action or proceeding.

TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon not less than thirty days written notice should the other
party fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of

this Agreement through no fauit of the party initiating the termination or should project funding be withdrawn or
not awarded. Accordingly, in the event such funding is not

available to client or is withdrawn, RDI shall be compensated for such work as has been duly performed
pursuant ta this Agreement prior to the date of notification of termination for such reasons,

PARTIAL SERVICES

In the event that the Client contracts with RDI for pariial professional services or that this Agreement is
terminated prior o the completion of full professional services by RDI, and/or assigned sub-consultants,

including design development, construction documents and construction phase, the Client agrees to

hold harmless, indemnify and defend RD1 and/or assigned sub-consultants, from and against any and all
claims, liabilities, losses, damages and costs, including but not limited to costs of defense, arising out of the
modification, misinterpretation and misuse of the plans and specifications in the completion of this project by
ofhers or arising out of any reuse of the plans and specifications on any other project, excepting
only those liabilities, losses, damages and costs caused by the negligence of RDI and/or assigned sub-
consultants.

SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS AND SUBCONTRACTORS
It is mutually understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be binding upen the Clieni and its successors

and assigns and upon RDI, its successors and assigns. Neither party shall assign nor transfer its interest in this
Agreement or any pari thereof without the written consent of the other party.
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RDI is responsible for all work and services reguired under this Agreement, including any work and services
described in this Agreement as being provided by or through any assigned sub-consuliant. if sub-consultant
fails to perform any of the work or services described herein, RDI remains obligated to perform such work and
services, or hire another gualified subcontractor to perform subject to written notice to the Client and consent of
the Client to such assignment of work to a new subcontracior. In all events, the Client is not in any way
obligated in law or equity to pay any sums to assigned sub-consultants under this Agreement or otherwise. The
obligation to pay for any work or services performed by assigned sub-consultants benefiting the Client shall be
solely that of RDI. RDI agrees to indemnify and pay for the defense of the Client in the event of any claims
made by assigned sub-consultants of RDI, which include the Client as a named defendant.

SCHEDULE

The Client shall approve time limits established by the schedule. RDI or the Client shall not, except for
reasonable cause and causes beyond the contral of RDI and the Client, exceed time limits established by the
schedule approved by the client.

COMMUNICATIONS

Except as may otherwise be pravided in the construction contract documents, or when the Client and contractor
have authorized direct communications shall primarily communicate through RD!. Communications by and with
RDI's consultants shall be through RDL.

Causes of action between the parties to this Agreement pertaining to acts or failures o act shall be deemed to
have accrued and the applicable statutes of limitations shall commence to run as provided by law.

This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between Client and RDI and supersedes all
prior negotiations, representations and agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be amended
only by written instrument signed by both Client and RDL.

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a confractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor of
a third-party against either the Client or RDi.

For purposes of this Agreement, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings indicated, Terms,
Words and phrases not separately defined shall have the meaning customarily assigned to them in the context
of public works and improvement contracts by local units of government.

"Assist" shall mean RDI preparing, providing and revising decuments as necessary for Client reviews and
approvals.

"Contract doecuments” shall mean all plans, specifications, bid documents, contracts, coniract conditions,
bonds, insurance certificates and policies and other writings relate to the actual construction of the project
which is the subject of this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that as of this Agreement, the identity, terms
and conditions of the contract document have not been determined.

This Agreement has been accepted and signed by RDI below. If this Agreement meets with your approval,
please sign below and return one copy for our files.

Russell Design, inc. Approved and Accepted

By:

Title:

Date




AGENDA NOTE

Consent Agenda Item # 3,

MEETING DATE: October 14, 2019

PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: Bob Donochue, DDA & Economic
Development Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Downtown Kids Trick or Treat, October 24

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: This is the DDA’s Annual Downtown Kids Trick or
Treat. Approximately 2,500 children participated, plus their families, last year. The
crowd was estimated to be between 3,000 — 5,000 due to perfect weather, word of mouth,
DDA Posters and Social Media promotion. The event is held from 6 — 8 p.m. However,
the road closures extend to 8:30 p.m. to accommodate the large crowd and their safety.
Individual businesses hand out candy and other items to children at each store and place
of business. Music and dance school performances take place in the intersection of Lake
and Lafayette Streets. Further adding to the festivities this year will be a Pet Parade by
SLARA, at 6:30 p.m. The following streets will be closed from 6:00 — 8:30 p.m.: N.
Lafayette Street from Whipple Street to Lake Street, S. Lafayette Street from Lake Street
to Liberty Street, E. Lake street from Wells Street to Lafayette Street, and W, Lake Street
from Washington Street to Lafayette Street.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:
Parade/Event Application from the South Lyon Police Department.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Road Closures request for the Annual Downtown
Kids Trick or Treat on October 24, 2019.

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by

to approve the Road Closures request for the Annual
Downtown Kids Trick or Treat from 6:00- 8:30 p.m. on Thursday, October 24,2019 on
N. Lafayette Street from Whipple Street to Lake Street, S. Lafayette Street from Lake
Street to Liberty Street, E. Lake street from Wells street to Lafayette Street, and W. Lake
Street from Washington Street to Lafavette Street.




Parade/Event Application

Date(s) of Event: O ctb ot ZQ_L/-; Za(q

Applicant’s Name: Bob Doma/'_lwé_,’,- DDA Diectonr phy. 777 d7‘77r 78S
App!icant’.s Address: 338 S WWVEM .  Soctth Zvam,/"li? e LA

Name of Event: l@gnﬁak}ﬂ /err(j 7—\1"((‘.& @w~TMﬁf
Business/Organization Name: .o ec££1 é&/ oD DA

Business Address: — 235 S . Jayve “ Locortt Lypon ME 4L E51T7E
Business Phone Number: ___ 2 ¥¢&. “+37. /1735 | -
President/CEQ ResponSi.bIe for Event: _Be onshue  phy. T4Y. ‘7‘7’7 FFLs
Event Start Date and Time: é hw Y

Event End Date and Time: - ﬁ‘rgﬁ _ AIVl

Approximate nhumber of persons attending.: 3,000

Approximate number and tYpes of vehicles: 2

Approximate number and types of animals: 25 D%IJ?A'@’%"- ?é—f_ p‘w“?ﬂ/ﬂ

Amount of space maintained between all units in parade: /U,//q

Route to be Traveled (Include Street Names and turning directions) or area to be utilized:;
A= éaﬁ@jeﬁ\& 741‘«9;4« Uh. ;m[e, Streef to Lake Qﬁweer, fﬁdﬁtcrez‘z‘e
P Lake Steeet 72 L é’fw“cf Stveet, [£. Lake Spreer. ?(’vam (el
Stweet 1O A{#ﬂo‘]{’,ﬁée, Sz‘reer a‘,\d W, {ate Sreeer ’I(]\!tﬁwt.
(A2 Shugizin gf\f‘é{-'f 72 Zd}dc"w ct/c gf‘\f”ﬁ'e"?“
sz) s, / /4 2

Apblicants’Signature and Datg’/' Responsible Party’s Signature and Date

SN e L8 pypr
Approved Denied

Chief Christopher Sovik ‘Date




Hold Harmless

To the fullest extent permitted by law the

{Name of applicant/organization)

agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of South Lyon, its
elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers, and other working on behalf of the
City of South Lyon against any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs
connected therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed, or recovered
against or from the City of South Lyon by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or
death and/or property damage including loss of use thereof which arises out of, or is in any
way connected or associated with this event. You and/or the organization that holds
responsibility will be held liable for the conduct of the event and each of its participants.

Sighature Date



Motion by , supported by

Resolved That Lisa Deaton, City Clerk/Treasurer is hereby authorized to make application to
the Road Commission for Oakland County on behalf of the City of South Lyon in the County
of Oakland, Michigan for the necessary permits to conduct the Downtown Trick-or-Treat
Event on Ociober 24, 2019 and the related road closures: Lafayette Street between Liberty
Street and Whipple Street; Lake Street between Wells Street and Washington Street; from
6:00 p.m. on October 24, 2019 until 8:30 p.m. on October 24, 2019.

and that the City of South Lyon in the County of Oakiand, Michigan will faithfully fulfill all permit
requirements, and shall save harmless, indemnify, defend and represent the Board against any
and all claims for bodily injury or property damage, or any other claim arising out of or related to
operations authorized by such permits as issued.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City
Council of the City of South Lyon, County of Qakland, State of Michigan, at a regularly scheduled
meeting of October 14, 2019, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said
meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267,
Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have
been made available as required by said act.

Lisa Deaton
City Clerk/Treasurer



AGENDA NOTE

Consent Agenda Item #3

MEETING DATE: October 14, 2019
PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: Police Chief
AGENDA TOPIC: In-Car Cameras Replacement

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: The current in-car cameras (6) are eight years old and are
out of warranty. We’ve had to replace three cameras and five wireless
microphone/transmitters since the warranty ended three years ago. During the budget
workshop in preparation for the 2019-2020 FY Budget, Council approved $66,000 for
replacement of the current in-car cameras. Police Department Budget Line Item 101-300-
978 Capital Equipment reflects that amount. Three bids were obtained for replacement
of the in-car cameras and accessories. WatchGuard’s quote was $63,138.00. Digital-
Ally’s quote was $37,659.00 and Pro-Vision’s quote was $32,970.00

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Memo from Chief
Sovik to City Manager Zelenak; bids from WatchGuard ($63,138.00), Digital Ally
($37,659.00) & Pro-Vision ($32,970.00), Responses from Michigan Association Chiefs
of Police list-serve requesting information about other agency’s experience with the three
manufacturers supplying bids/quotes,

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve/Do Not Approve the purchase of the
in-car cameras from Manufacturer WatchGuard for the amount of $63,138.00.

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by
to approve the purchase of the in-car cameras from
Manufacturer WatchGuard in the amount of $63,138.00 to be deducted from Police
Department Budget Line Item 101-300-978: Capital Equipment.

10/14/19



wATcH®lGURARD  4RE/VISTA Price

Quote

CUSTOMER: South Lyon Police Department ISSUED: 10/2/2019 1:13 PM

Attn: Accounts Payable,

219 Whipple St.,,
South Lyon,MI,,
48178 Rl B i
ATTENTION:  Lt. Christopher Sovik SALES CONTALT: David Stum
PHONE: 248-437-1773 DIRECT; (469) 640-52(01
E-MAIL:  sovikc@southlyonpatice.com E-MAIL: david.stum@motorolasolutions.com
Dave Lowry - Regional Sales Manager
317-897-7205
dave@enforocementproducts.com
4RE and VISTA Proposal
Evidence Library 4 Web Software and Licensing
Part Number Detail Qty Direst Discount Total Price
KEY-EL4-SRV-001 Evidence Library 4 Web Server Site License Key 1.00 $1,000.00 50,00 51,000,00
Evidence Library 4 Web 4RE In-Car Device
KEY-EL4-DEV-001 License Key 6.00 $150.00 50.00 5900.00
4RE In-Car System and Options
Part Number Datail Qty Direct Discount Total Price

4RE Standard DVR Camera System with
integrated 200GB astomotive grade hard drive,
4RE-STD-GPS-RV2 16GB USB removable thumb drive, rear facing 6.00 $4,795.00 $371.00 $26,544.00
‘ cabin camera, GPS, hardware, cabling and
your choice of mounting bracket.

CAM-4RE-PAN-NHD Additional Front Camera, 4RE, HD Panoramic 6.00 $200.00 $200.00 $0.00
Wireless Video Transfer and Networking Options

Part Number Detail Oty Direct Discount Total Price
4RE In-Car 802,11n Wireless Kit, 5GHz (2.4

ARE-WRL-KIT-104 Gz is avallable by request) 6.00 £200,00 $20,00 $1,080.00
WAP-MIK-CON-802 ;‘g;f,ﬁf";gfgj'gh?;‘f“’e"* MikroTik, 2.00 $250.00 $0.00 $500.00
Microphone Options

Part Number Petail Oty Direct Discount Total Price
mic-wRL-DTCqp0  HF Micrapfione Pesktap Chiarger, includes 1.00 $99.00 $0.00 $99.00
MICWRL-TRN-4gp | [-F1 Microphane Additional/Replacment 4.00 $345.00 56,00 $1,380.00
MIC-HFI-MLT-CHG Hi-Fi Microphone Desktop 8-Bay Charging Rack. 1.00 $945.00 $0.00 $945,00
4RE Hardware Warranties

Part Number Detail Qty Direct Discount Total Price
WAR-RE-CAR-5TH 5 Year 4RE Hardware and Software 6.00 $1,375,00 $0.00 $8,250,00

415 E. Exchange Parkway = Allen, TX » 75002
Toll Free {800) 605-6734 » Main (972) 423-5777 « Fax {972) 423-9778
‘ . www. WaichGuardVideo.com
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wATCcH & lcuarD

4RE/VISTA Price
Quote

Maintenance Bundle

Software Maintenance and CLOUD-Share

Part Number Detail Qty Direct Discount Total Price
SFW-MNT-EL4-001 3‘;‘;";“("’\[2 n’:‘;;"ﬁ“;)““’ Evidence Library, 1st 6.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
SFW-EL4-CLD-BAS  Evidence Library 4 Web CLOUD-SHARE - Basic 6.00 $0.00 40,00 $0.00
SFW-EL4-CLD-BAS  Tonce Lbrary 4 Web CLOUD - SHARE - Basic 354 50.00 §0.00 $0.00
Server Hardware and Software

Part Number Detali Qty Direct Discount Total Price
HDW-4RE-SRV-201 gi;ie;;rzgftgﬁsﬂgaﬁézgﬂ33”’ 16-35 1.00 $8,850.00 $0.00 $8,250.00
HDW-4RE-HDD+6TB ';';‘;ﬁ.?,”g:t’esr:ﬁfsi + 510 6GB/S 7,200 RAM, 6.00 $425.00 $0.00 $2,550.00
WatchGuard Video Technical Services

Part Numbet Detail Gty Direct Discount Total Price
SVC-4RE-ONS-400 ;’:;;f;‘;‘;}ge%;’ Configuration, Testing and 1.00 $2,500.00 50.00 $2,500.00
KEY-WGV-RED-ED1 ggi“{‘}:‘:;lff?(ﬁ‘?m"m’ Enterprise, Single 1.00 $3,995.00 $0.00 §3,995.00
Sof_tware
ﬁ“@é‘ﬁ?’r‘&"&i@, 3 gﬂf,}“,‘;:rfMﬂfffﬁ‘gﬁe REDACTIVE(sm), 3-Year 1.00 $2,250.00 $0.00 $2,250.00
Year Bundte
(Months 1-36) _

WARWGR-MNT-004  Otware Maintenance, REDACTIVE(sm), 4th 1.00 §785.00 $0.00 $785.00
WARSRV-RCK-SYR o o R e o7 6’:;’)“ Service 1.00 $1,175.00 $0.00 $1,475.00
Shipping and Handling

Part Number Detait Oty Direct Discount Total Price
Freight Shipping/Handling and Processing Charges 1.00 $375.00 $0.00 $375.00

$63,178.00

Total Estimated Tax, may vary from State to State 50,00

Configuration Discounts
Additlonal Quete Discount

$3,546,00

NOTE: This is only an estimate for 4RE & VISTA related hardware, software and WG Technical Services. Actuat costs related to a
turn-key operation requires more detailed discussion and analysis, which will define actual back-office costs and any costs
associated with configuration, support and installation. Please contact your sales representative for more details.

415 E. Exchange Parkway » Alten, TX « 75002
Toil Free (800) 605-6734 = Main (972) 423-89777 « Fax (972) 423-9778
www WaichGuardVideg.com
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WATCH®PlcuURRD  #RE/VISTA Price

Quote

To accept this quotation, sign, date and return with Purchase Order: : DATE:

415 E. Exchange Parkway = Allen, TX » 75002
Toll Free (800) 605-5734 » Main (972) 423-9777 » Fax (972) 423-9778
www. WatchGuardVideo.com
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@ pigital-Ally’

(CAPTURE TRUTH

9705 Loiret Bivd.
Lenexa, KS 66219
1-800-440-4947 www.digitalallyinc.com -

Customer:

South Lyon Police Department
219 Whipple

South Lyon, MI 48178

Justiri
Appleberry

1 QUO-28310-BON7S3

7/24/2019

{1

31004 0906100 Assembly, ereless Radio, RMT $265.00 $0.00 $795.00
928
6/012-00042-00 ProServ-Activation Fee $30.00 $0.00 %0.00 $180.,00
6]|566-00167-00 Camera, POE/IP, 1080p 30fps, $395.00 $0.00 $2,370.00
Smart IR LED's, microphone
6]566-00777-00-G Forward IP Camera $395.00 £0.00 $2,370.00
6]K001-00777-00 EVO HD System w/Radlo $4795.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,770.00
2] Cloud Software user [icense £96.00 $0.00 $576.00
6 Trade In rebate ($300.00) $0.00 ($1,800.00}
6 365 Day Cloud Storage $708.00 $0.00 $4,248.00
Notes: Total Discount - $0.00
Subtotal $37,509.00
Misc
Tax $0.00
Freight $150.00
Total $37,659.00




i|Quo-28310-BoN7S3

“CAPTURE TRUTH

E)pigital-Ally’

* ProService Setup & Config Includes*
- Advanced exchange Warranty
- Remote Product Setup & Configuration
-Conversion from Local setup to Cloud setup
- - Dedicated Project Manager
- Best Practices & Implementation Planning Session
- System Administrator & Troubleshooting Training Session
- Implementation Document Packet
-GoLive
- Foliow-up Review Session

*EVO HD*

-two HD Carmeras

-2TB External SSD Storage

-128GH Internal Storage

~Four Channel Video

-Patented VuLink Automatic Activation Triggering
-6 Input Sensors / High-G Event Sensor
-Infernal GPS

-Internal Wi-Fi Module

-internal Cell Mode

-Back-up Battery

* & Year Cloud Plan* :
-- 365 Days Unlimited Storage at $59.00 per month.
-- Additional storage may be purchased in increments of 100GB
for $63 per year.
- Full Software Access & Redaction
- Full Access to Share Portal
-- Alt equipment on the Cloud covered under warranty for tarm of
Agreement
* Annual Cloud Cost Breakdown*

15t Year= $4,248.00

2nd Year=$4,248.00

3rd Year=$4,248.00

4Ath Year=$4,248.00

5th Year=54,248.00

Thank you for your interest in Digital Aflly products. If you would like to place an order, please contact the Digital Ally
Sales Team at 1-800-440-4947,

TERMS OF SALE

Your purchase of goods from Digital Ally, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Digital Ally”) will be governed by the following terms of sale
(“Terms"). You will be referred to throughout these Terms as “you”,

1, Exclusion of Other Terms; Entire Agreement. Additiona! or different terms or conditions proposed by
you (including any additional or different terms provided in a purchase order) will be void and of no effect
unless specifically accepted in writing by Digital Ally. Digital Ally’s sales invoice, the limited warranty
accompanying the Goods, these Terms, and any special conditions agreed to in writing and signed by you
and Digital Ally are incorporated and collectively referred to herein as the "Order", which supersedes and
cancels all prier communications between us, whether verbal or written, and constitutes the entire
agreement between us unless medified in writing and signed by each of us. In the event of a conflict



ADDRESS: PREPARED BY: QUOTE #:

8625-B Byron Commerce Dr. NTPEQ1271-01
" fa G
P 5’(3) .Sv){ssf;{ E??N Byron Center, Ml 49315 Angela Carr
. ) ' provisionusa.com PREPARED FOR: DATE:
800-576-1126 06/12/19

South Lyon Police Dept

HD VIDEO SYSTEM QUOTE

Dascription Part # Unit Price Ext. Price

HD In-Car Video Systems 6 $3,815.00 $22,890

1080p HD In-Car Video Base KIT Plus DVR-B08CLE

Includes: Dash Camera, |nterior Camera, DVR, Lockable Cage, GPS Antenna,
128GB SD Card, 1 YR FREE of PV Dashboard, 2 10ft Cables, 15ft LAN Cable,
Event Marker Buiton, Wireless Mic Transmitter and Receiver, Lapel Mic,
Leather Belt Pouch, Software & Guides

HD Forward Facing Camera KIT DVR-813
Hb Waterproof Wide Angle Mini-Dome Camera KIT DVR-B20
HD Waterproof Wide Angle Mini-Dome Camera XIT OVR-820
HD Wireless Auto File Fransfer KIT DVR-828
Securaliax 5 ¥r Cloud Package 6 $1,680.00 $1D,080
‘Securalax - Standard 5 Year Plan [50GB] SMX-5YR-50
Optional Software Solutions: Totat $32,970
(No Options)
SECURAMAX VIDEO MANAGEMENT VISRP- 535,154
SMX-5YR-50 ... SecuraMax™ - Standard 5 Year Plan [50GE] ... : 3
$30/month/device Savings: . 52,214

PV DASHBOARIP FLEET MANAGEMENT
1 Year of PV Dashboard
FREE with Purchase of DVR-BOBCLE In-Car Video System

DB-5YR-5... PV Dashboard Standard 5 Year Plan
$15 / Month per Device

60 Month Installment Purchase Option (per unit/month) 5 N/A
Above Option with Installation (per unit/month} S N/A

Lease price based on total product purchase divided by the total number of systems.

General Terms: PRO-VISION®, Inc. ships all orders UPS Ground, Service or carrier change will result in additional charges. Shipping & Handling not included unless specified.
Purchase price is USD and FOB Byran Center, MI. Product Invoice Net 30 Day Terms or 2.0% Discount Net 1C Day Terms. 5% Biscount when 100% payment is received with
purchase order. Terms and Discounts do not apply to leases or credit card payments. Past due invoices will be subject to 8 1.5% per month Finance Charge. No technical
support or warranty claims will be provided for any past due account. All transactions are subject to finat PRO-VISION® Management Approval.

06/12/19 CONFIDENTIAL

Tof2



b ]
2]

Leasing: Installment Purchase Option Appliéaﬁon must be submitted for final management approval. Rates are subject to change without notice until application is approved.
Shipping & Handling is nat Included in guoted Instaliment Purchase Option Rates. Shipping & Handling will be: inciuded in Installment Purchase Option Application. A $360.00
document fee and one advance payment equal to the total monthly rate is required with approved final Installment Purchase Option Documents.

SecuraiMax®: Plan Price per Month Based on Service Contract for the specified length with autopay discount. Service Contract and End User License Agreement {EULA)
required, Additional terms specified in Service Contract and EULA, Hardware using SecuraMax must be paid for prior to deployrment. Pratection Plan Claims Subjectta

Deductible.

06/12/19 CONFIDENTIAL
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SOUTH LYON POLICE DEPARTMENT

Christopher J. Sovik

Memorandum

To: City Manager Paul Zelenak
From: Chief Christopher J. Sovik
Subject: In-Car Camera Replacement
Date: October 8, 2019

As you are aware, L{. Baaki and I have been researching replacement in-car
cameras (6) for our patrol vehicles. During the May 2019 budget workshop in
preparation of FY budget 2019-2020, City Council approved $66,000.00 for the
replacement of our current in-car cameras (101-300-978 Capital Equipment). L-3
Mobile-Vision is our current in-car camera manufacturer and was recently bought
out by Safe Fleet. Although L-3 has been fairly reliable, it is not as user friendly as
WatchGuard and we have had several software issues mostly related to java script
applications. L-3’s quote ($65,008.20) was more than WatchGuard and wasn’t one
of the company’s I requested information on when putting it out to the Michigan
Association of Chiefs of Police list serve.

Included in this agenda item packet are the responses I received from other
agency’s experience with Pro-Vision, Digital Ally and WatchGuard; poesitive and
negative. What we liked about WatchGuard was that it was easy to use and navigate
to various options. The panoramic front view camera was also a selling point. No
other manufacturer offered the wide angles to encompass events that may not be
seen by other manufacturers.

Another advantage to the WatchGuard system is the “after the fact” programming.
WatchGuard’s patented Record-After-the-Fact (RATF) technology provides the
ability to go back in time and capture the video from the event days after it
happened.



Included in WatchGuard’s quote is redaction software. Administrators will now
have the ability to redact information from video/audio transmissions. The quoted
WatchGuard system will be able to seamlessly integrate Body Worn Cameras
(BWC) should the department decide to purchase them in the future. With or
without the BWCs, having the redaction software will greatly assist our
administrators respond to and fulfill the increasing number of Freedom of
Information Act Requests (FOIA).

Included in WatchGuard’s quote is a five year “bumper to bumper” warranty. If
hardware fails, they send you a new unit and a box to return the damaged unit.
Software 1T support is available 24/7.

Not included in WatchGuard’s quote is the removal of the old in-car cameras and
installation of the new. Cynergy Wireless of Troy, Michigan has performed removal
and install for all our patrol vehicle equipment needs for several years. They will
remove and install the six (6) new cameras and accessories for $3,000. Cynergy is
very familiar with WatchGuard as they have installed several systems for
neighboring agencies that utilize WatchGuard.

Once our new I'T Company (I.T. Right) comes on board, WatchGuard will partner
with them to properly install the programming on our in-house computers. 1.T.
Right works with several agencies that also contract with WatchGuard.

If this item is approved by Council, I will initiate the grant proeess for in-car
cameras reimbursement. I will contact MMRMA and apply for a Risk Avoidance
Program (RAP) grant. MMRMA is offering up to 25%., up to $1,500 per camera for
new/replacement in-car cameras. I will work with Carol Brandon at City Hall when
applying for the grant.

In the past, we at this department have been plagued with the mentality to always
“go with the lowest bid”. I need to steer us away from that short-sided thinking. I
will agree that with certain purchases, cheaper is better, but not in this case. Funds
were approved by Council during the workshop for this purchase and the quality of
the product and customer service is second to none.

Here are a few of the organizations in Michigan that use WatchGuard. This isn’t a
complete list, but I included both big and nearby agencies:

Michigan State Police — statewide conversion in process now.
Detroit PD

Qakland County Sheriff

Macomb County Sheriff

UofM

Pittsfield Twp PD

Novi PD

Kalamazoo PD

Kalamazoo Twp PD



Farmington PD
Farmington Hills PD
Birmingham PD
Rochester PD

Ferndale PD

Clinton Twp PD

Clinton County Sheriff
Roseville PD

Sterling Heights PD
Southfield PD

Lathrup Village PD
Northville PD (just deployed)
Saginaw PD

Saginaw Twp PD

Van Buren Twp PD

Van Buren County Sheriff
Wolverine Lake PD
Walled Lake PD

Orchard Lake PD

Keego Harbor PD



My request through the Michigan Law Enforcement Administrator’s list serve email requesting
information on the three manufacturers bidding for replacement of our in-car cameras:

Subject: [[MACP General] ] In-Car Camera Companies/Systems
Chiefs, Directors & Administrators,
Our agency has received bids for updating our in-car cameras. | am looking for comments and

experiences with the following companies: Digital Ally, Pro-Vision & WatchGuard. Please send
comments to my email at sovikc@southlyonpolice.com

Thank you in advance and for taking the time to respond and assist.
Respectfully,

Chief Christopher J. Sovik
South Lyon Police Department
219 Whipple Street

South Lyon, M1 48178

Direct Line: 248-437-0444
Station: 248-437-1773

Fax: 248-437-0459

sovikc@southlyenpolice.com

The following are other agency’s experience with the listed manufacturers. The emails of the
administrator’s responses have been removed, but the name and department of those who responded
are included.

Chris
We have had Watchguard for many years and just upgraded in 2018 to new in-car and Body cameras.
The customer service is top-notch, spend the money on the warranty because they do break.

We also purchased the server so we don’t have any cloud storage fees. | think for us, 10 cars, 32 BWC,
server and all 5 year warranties it was around $120,000.

Vincent Palazzolo
Chief of Police
Ferndale Police Department



Our experience was HORRIBLE with Pro-Vision. Just recently switched to Axon.

* Body Cams were the worse. One year warranty and broke shortly after the one
year. Constantly playing with software to get it to upload etc. etc. etc. Had 8 cameras and
replaced 10 in the three years we had them. Most out of warranty and had to pay full price. |
could keep going but sounds like you are only interested in in-car cameras.

e They promised the world and did not deliver. Never saw them again after the initial install. We
chose to go with wireless uploads to our own video server. They obviously never did this before
and we had many, many issues which we had fo pay our own L.T. guys thousands of dollars to
figure out their system and their faults.

®  We have (still have} periodic issues which requires us to pull a fuse and hope that fixes it. Many
times it does, sometimes it does not. We call for service and they tell us to remove this wire,
that multibridge, play with software etc.. Ultimately we have to fix it ourselves. We even
offered to drive it to them in Byron Center so they could look at it and they would not allow us
to do that. If something breaks, you have to send it in, let them check it, and then they will send
a new part. Lots of down time waiting for new parts even under warranty.

Feel free to call me if you any other questions. | would avoid Pro Vision!
Randall Wright

Chief of Police
Fremont PD

Chris,

We have been very happy with WatchGuard. They were just acquired a week or so ago by Motorola
which is a huge win. Axon {(AKA Taser) has been trying to get every top engineer from WatchGuard to
enhance their in-car and body camera.

They are the best system out there - bar none.
David Molloy

Director of Public Safety
Novi Police & Fire

Chris,

How are you? PPD deployed a complete WatchGuard system May 1%t. We have 3 In-Car, 5
BWC'’s, the Interview Room Module and the server. So far we have been very happy with
everything, from start to finish. If you want to come check it out, let me know.

Jeffrey M. Newton
Chief of Police
Pinckney Police Department




Hi Chris,

We've been using WatchGuard since 2015, The system has been flawless. We transitioned from
Panasonic which was a little too expensive to maintain. It is my understanding that Motorola recently
purchased WatchGuard, so | don't know what that will do in terms of customer service in the future.

Hope this helps

Frank J Demers, M.S.
Director
City of Farmington Public Safety Departiment

Hi Chief,
Woe had L3 and moved to WatchGuard about 2 years ago. Very pleased with the WatchGuard 4RE
System. Has three cameras in-car. One HD adjustable up front, one SD panoramic up front and one back

seat camera.

We dealt with Dave Lowery in sales there (800-605-6734). He was very knowledgeable, had a demo
vehicle and often calls us to see if we are still satisfied.

Thus far their customer support has been very good.
I hope this was useful.

Best Regards,

Eric J. Styles

Ad_min_istrative Lieutenant

NéW"BaItimore Police Department




Chief,

Although we have eliminated the dash cameras in lieu of body cameras, we were not happy with the
quality and longevity of the Digital Ally products. | had to send several in for repair and in my opinion
their customer service is lacking.

We opted for WatchGuard for the body cameras and have been happy with durability and customer
service. | know MSP recently went with WatchGuard and | believe Detroit is running them also.

Hope this helps,
Randy Krause

Chief of Police
Rockwood Police Department

1 am going to cur City Council in two weeks and will be recommending WatchGuard. Chief Messer from
Holland DPS strongly advised me against Pro Vision for customer service and software issues. Pro Vision
is located 25 minutes from our office, so there would have been a convenience factor for us too. The
officer that handles all of our technical issues also advised that he much preferred WatchGuards
product/software. Hopefully this is useful.

Jay Gibson
Chief of Police

Allegan City Police Department

We have experience with both Pro-Vision and Watchguard.

We would not recommend using Pro-Vision as we had many issues with the company including
technology issues with the body worn microphone which in turn landed us in federal court on a case and
they didn’t back us on it. It is my understanding that Pro-Vision was originally designed as a camera
system for school buses which is why it isn’t law enforcement friendly. Other issues we had with Pro-
Vision were the video quality at night time especially on streets with city lights, download issues from
the SD cards, and overall just not user friendly.

On the other hand we definitely recommend Watchguard as the system is both user friendly for
administrators and officers and makes having an in-car video system seamless with automatic video
downloads from the car and further with their category record retention. Watchguard is a bit more
pricey but well worth the cost. We later added body cameras through Watchguard to our in-car cameras
and having one platform for both systems has made the transition to another camera much easier on
our officers and us.

If you have any other questions feel free to contact the chief or myself.

Thank you,

Amanda Clough

Deputy Police Chief

City of Grayling




We currently use L-3 (safety Fleet) but have 9 Pro-Visien Body-Cam’s. 1have no experience with the
Pro-Vision In-Car camera’s but know that the customer service is excellent with pro-Vision, their
warrant is 5 years and they are definitely the lowest priced. We are currently waiting to have a Watch
Guard system installed {which was just purchased by Motorola) as they have an integrated body-cam
that works seamlessly with the in-car system which is why we are trying it out. We went with Pro-
Vision body cameras after numerous delays from L-3, wand they never delivered the body cameras we
were quoted.

Dariusz Nisenbaum
Deputy Chief
Hamburg Township Police Department

We have Digital Ally both in-car and body cameras. | wouldn't get Digital Ally again if it was free or they
paid us to have it!! (Ok, maybe if they paid us)

We have had nothing but trouble since the first day we got it. We had our city attorney request a return
and refund of our purchase price ($35,000) and they refused and told us to sue them. It would have to
be done in Kansas City so it wasn’t worth it. Support has been ok but we have to call them weekly for
problems.

I would not go with Digital Ally ever again. In my 29 years of police work it is the worst product we have
ever purchased.

Thanks,
Steve

Steven L Grinnewald
Director of Public Safety
City of Dowagiac

Chief Sovik-

| was advised the South Lyon Police Department is in the process of evaluating new camera

systems. Currently, the MSP utilizes Digital Ally, but just started transitioning the entire fleet to
Watchguard. The decision was made after extensive testing. We have decided to deploy a cellular off-
load solutien. This set up required new modems and antennas for our vehicles. We have chosen
Cradlepoint modems and Panorama 5 in 1 antennas. The Digitial Ally system has experienced several
failures and data losses in the field which caused our need to seek an alternative. Overall, the
Watchguard systems served our needs best. We are utilizing Watchguard’s management software,
Evidence Library, for cloud based videc storage. | would be happy to give more specifics on our setup
and decisions why if needed. My contact information is listed below. Stay Safe

Steve

F/Lt. Steven L. Temelko

Technology Division

Mobile Office Environment Section Commander
Michigan State Police



Hi Chief Sovik,

I am Captain Christopher Franks from Kalamazoo Department of Public Safety. In searching for body
cameras, | also evaluated several companies in-car camera systems looking for the best fit for our
agency. The company we ended up going with is Watchguard. We went with them because of their
software and the quality of the camera system. We did look at provision because it is a Michigan
company and there camera systems were very inexpensive when we were looking at them but they just
didn’t have a good backend software that we were locking for. Digital Ally's in car camera’s software on
the backend also just didn’t do what we wanted.

We started with Watchguard in 2017. They allowed us to test there in car system and body cameras in
2016 and we were very happy with them. The in-car system we went with has a panoramic camera out
the front which has proven very helpful when review what happened just off to the front side of the
vehicle. The in-car systems are solid and over the last couple of years we have had them we have not
had to send very many back for repair. The back end of the software we went with was Watchguard’s
evidence library 4 software. The software has worked very well for us. The customer service
Watchguard has given us is great. | contacted Watchguard recently as they have been acquired

by Motorola to see what changes are coming and they said no changes yet. Watchguard also puts on
factory training where you can go to the company and learn different things about the system and how
to install it into a vehicle. We took advantage of the training and loved it.

If you have more questions about the system or want to stop in to see it please let me know. | will
include my cell phone number below.

Thanks
Captain Christopher Franks
Kalamazoo Department of Public Safety

Hi Chris. Clinton Township purchased 30 in car cameras and 65 body cameras frorn Watch Guard. Dave
Lowery is the business representative for Michigan. Great guy to work with. His is at the MACP
conference every year. He also makes his rounds to our county (Macomb) when he is in our area. We
are happy with the system and is easy for cops to use. {Surprising, | know)

Fred Posavetz
Police Chief
Clinton Township Police Department

Chiefs,

| saw your questions about in-car camera systems on the MACP list. | don't have any experience at all
with Pro-Vision, so | can’t tell you anything about them, but we have had WatchGuard in-car cameras for
about 4 years now. The video quality you get with their cameras is excellent, and the interface and
labeling for the officers is pretty easy to use. They also have some nice features like “recording after the
fact” for occasions when you need video and the camera was powered on but not recording. Those are
the good points.



The bad points....video is expensive to maintain on our internal servers for any length of time, and we
find ourselves having to burn video onto DVD’s and book them into evidence so that we can maintain
them long encugh for criminal cases. This is time consuming and not very efficient, but the server space
we would need to store video for longer periods of time is far too expensive. We also have minor but
pretiy frequent technical issues with the camera systems that require a lot of intervention by our
Quartermaster and IT staff. These are annoying and time consuming, but we make it work. Our bigger
issues with them have been when patrol cars have crashed. The cameras have shut down and rebooted
upon collision, and we have lost significant portions of video because of it. We lost video in an officer
involved shooting after the suspect rammed our patrol car. This portion of video would have included
the entire shooting portion of the incident, but the camera did not record that. WatchGuard’s battery
back-up “fix” for this seems to have caused us more technical issues and | don’t believe has actually
solved the problem reliably. | have also found their customer service to be somewhat lacking as

well. They are not very forthcoming with their knowledge of problems and fixes unless you ask them,
and then you find out that other agencies have had similar issues. And then they will want to charge
you to fix the problem, which seems ridiculous to me since our cameras are under warranty. If your
cameras are out of warranty, they will be expensive to fix, especially on those occasions when you need
to remove them from the car and ship them to WathGuard for service. Overall, I'm not a big fan of
WatchGuard, but for the most part we are keeping them up and running. Some of these problems are
probably going to happen with any system you have.

We tested the Digital Ally system about 5 years ago.....we didn’t like them at all in comparison to
WatchGuard, and ended up going to the Watchguard system for our in-car system. We did however buy
Digital Ally body worn cameras. These were the first body worn cameras we had, and we had tested
numerous models before buying them. They performed well in testing for six months, but we started
having numerous problems with them right after we bought them. They turned out to be completely
unreliable, and we struggled to maintain enough werking cameras to outfit a shift on the road. We were
constantly sending cameras back for repair or replacement, and at one point we were pretty sure they
were just sending us someone else’s malfunctioning cameras because we would get them out of the box
and they would fail shortly after. Their customer service rep was a very nice guy and | believe did his
best to help us, but he was dealing with some very poor engineering and manufacturing

processes. Because of our issues with their body worn system, | would not recommend Digital Ally to
anyone for in-car or body worn camera systems. We ended up scrapping those cameras 2 years ago,
and went to the Axon system for body worn cameras. We have had absolutely no significant issues with
our body worn cameras since then. We have had a very good experience with Axon, and recently
started testing the Axon in car system and are locking at possibly transitioning our patrol cars to those
cameras in the next few years.......they have a very good in-car system, but are still a little bit behind
WatchGuard in terms of available features that the cameras have. They will probably catch up them in
the very near future, and it will be nice for us to have both body worn and patrol cars on the same
recording system.

I hope this info helps you out.....feel free to call me if you have any additional questions or there’s
anything | can help you with.

Captain Jeff Campbell
Eaton County Sheriff’'s Office



Chief-

Below is a portion of our executive surmmary that helped our decision. Please let me know if you need
further and best of luck.

1. Watchguard

d.

The test started after the install on Sept. 26, 2016 and ended on Oct. 24, 2016. Note:
the delay in uninstall was due to the International Association of Chief's of Police (IACP)
conference that occurred during this time. A lack of MSP personnel to supervise the
uninstall was not available.

The tested system was the 4RE Panoramic high definition system.

Troopers rated this system higher than all other systems tested, highlighting the
extreme ease of operation, the simple, easy to understand interface, audio performance
and video guality. This camera was rated a 10 out of 10.

The audio guality was rated very highly. On a traffic stop, noise from passing semi-
trucks did not override the voices of the trooper or citizen contacted.

The audio range was superb and the best discovered of any system during the RFI. The
rated specifications of “Two miles line-of-sight” was far beyond the ratings of other
systems, of which the next hest rating was “up to 2,000 feet”. In real-world testing,
audio connections held very strong whether the trooper was in a building, business, or
residence, hundreds of feet away from the patrol vehicle. When signal begins to fail,
the wireless mic boosts its transmission signa! to maintain the highest level of
connection possible. Troopers made the statement that audio quality was “in a league
of its own”.

The wireless mic pack had a simple to understand LCD display that showed battery
status, wireless signal, and whether audio was muted or broadcasting. The wireless mic

had options to turn off the display backlighting, adjust vibration and turn on/off audio
notifications.

i. The wireless mic pack would reconnect to the camera if
switched off and was extremely easy to sync to the camera by placing the mic
pack into the charging cradle for 2 seconds. This type of feature would be
extremely helpful to eradicate lost audio issues that occur in the field now.

ii. The mute feature is a lever that is continuously held down
to mute. When the lever is released, the audio recording resumes. The in-car
camera control system has an option for user selectable audio muting of the in-
car microphone. This can be adjusted through administrator settings.

iii. The wireless mic lasts for the entire shift and has the
potential to last multiple shifts, up to 30 hours. It can rest in standby mode for
up to 25 days. This standby mode is patented by Watchguard.



g. The daytime video was excellent and the nighttime video cutperformed other systems
observed during the RFl. Watchguard has a unigue camera technology that provides U-
WDR — Ultra-Wide Dynamic Range. This provides a much better video light exposure to
provide extreme clarity during nighttime traffic stops. Plates were visible through
emergency flashing lights, during review.

h. The camera can be configured to remain powered on if the vehicle is turned on. Video
will then be recorded any time it is triggered, no matter who is driving. During testing, it
was observed that, if configured in this way, the VRS recording could not be bypassed.

i. Video was not directly accessible by the user and all actions were kept in the audit
trail. Video is stored in a non-removable drive and all incident video is tagged in the
non-removable drive to prevent overwriting. Video can be uploaded wirelessly or via
manual removable thumb drive use. Allincident video is backed up to the internal
memory and will not release until the backend software notifies the VRS that the
incident video has been securely and successfully received. In the event of thumb drive
loss or failure, the internal VRS memory will offload the video again (to a system
registered thumb drive only), guaranteeing that video will not be lost.

j.  The system buffers up to approximately 5 days’ worth of video when the system is
powered on. Video can be created from that buffered video, if necessary. For example,
if the camera has not been triggered and an incident happens within the camera view,
video can be created of that incident {without audio). Watchguard labels this “Record-
After-the-Fact”.

k. Woatchguard has a patented technology displayed during the RFI that could provide
substantial cost savings on storage needs. The 4RE holds both SD and HD streams
during recording and the system can be configured to select either SD or HD
automatically or with the user selecting options. For example, videos marked as a traffic
stop could be saved in SD mode and all incident videos would be saved in HD. This
could provide an approximate 75% reduction in storage needs for most of the video
generated during VRS use. A trooper has the option, if the need arises, to override this
and choose to save the HD version of a traffic stop when marking the video at the time
of recording. This feature would greatly speed up video transfer speed as well. As this
is patented, no other camera vendor is able to offer this capability.

I.  There is optional software to securely transmit live streaming video from a patro! car to
command staff.

As indicated above, the Watchguard 4RE - Panoramic camera system performed the best, by far, of any
of the camera systems tested and was rated the highest among the members of the VRS Committee
who observed the vendor presentation or tested the system. The stand out comment made during
testing is “it just works”. The Watchguard VRS addresses ail of the current issues that MSP has
encountered with our current VRS and provides capabilities that troopers have identified as needed for
the field.

The final cost is unknown until contractual negotiations may take place, but it is estimated to be near
$5,000 to $5,500. It is worth noting that MSP was purchasing the DVM-500P|us systems for over $5,300



each, as of 2014, so the pricing, if within this range, would be competitive with industry standards and
with what MSP has paid in the past.

Watchguard is currently deployed with North Carolina State Police, Pennsylvania State Police, Kent
County, Oakland County, Macomb County and Detroit Police Department, to name a few.

During the RFI, specific, patented and unigue technologies were discovered that prompted the VRS
Committee to recommend Watchguard as the next-generation VRS for MSP.

Best Regards,

F/Lt. Steven L. Temelko

Technology Division

Mobhile Office Environment Section Commander
Michigan State Police

Good morning Chief’s,

My department is in the process of switching all of our in-car camera units over to Watchguard. We got
our first Watchguard system two years ago. The system is very user friendly, the video is of high quality,
the customer service is outstanding, and the range/quality on the microphone is far superior to Digital
Ally. We have been with Digital Ally for over a decade and in my opinion Watchguard is far superior in
many ways. We have been extremely pleased with Watchguard.

Also, we purchased Watchguard interview room systems. Nice thing is the system is identical to the in-
car system, so the officer’s do not have to learn another system. All in-car videos and interview room
recordings are stored in the same system, which is nice for ease of use.

Good luck!
Eric Hamp

Lieutenant
Alpena Police Department



AGENDA NOTE

New Business Item #1

MEETING DATE: October 14, 2019
PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: City Manager

AGENDA TOPIC: Michigan Department of Treasury Form 5597
Corrective Action Plan Retirement Health Benefits
Public Act 202 of 2017

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Public Act 202 of 2017 requires underfunded Iocal unit
of governments to develop and submit for approval a corrective action plan for retirement
health benefit plans. Underfunded status is defined as being either less than 40% funded
according to most recent audit financial statements; and/or the annual required
contribution (ARC) for all the retirement health systems is greater than 12% of the local
government’s annual governmental fund revenues. Form 5597 Corrective Action Plan
for Financial Statements dated June 30, 2018 must be approved by Council and submitted
to the Michigan Department of Treasury by October 31, 2019 or 180 days afier notice.
City staff and Plante Moran auditors will be in attendance to answer any questions you
may have on the subject. '

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Corrective Action
Plan Form 5597, Attachment 6a explanation of underfunded status, Audited Financial
Statements dated June 30, 2018, GASB 75 Actuarial Valuation Report dated June 30,
2018.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Corrective Action Plan reported on Form 5597.

£

L]

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion by ,Lsupported by

to approve Form 5597 Corrective Action Plan Retirement
Health Benefits for Public Act 202 of 2017.




Michigan Department of Treasury
5597 (08-18)

Protecting Local Government Retirement and Benefits Act
Corrective Action Plan:
Retirement Health Benefit Systems

Issued under authority of Public Act 202 of 2017.

I. MUNICIPALITY INFORMATION _
Local Unit Name: City of South Lvon Six-Digit Muni Code: 632210

Retirement Health Benefit System Name:_City of South Lyon OPEB Plan

Contact Name (Administrative Officer);_Paul Zelenak

Title if not Administrative Officer: _City Manager

Email;_PZelenak@southlyonmi.org Telephone: (248) 437-1735

2. GENERAL INFORMATION - R S
Corrective Action Plan: An underfunded local unit of government shall develop and submit for approval a
corrective action plan for the local unit of government. The local unit of government shall determine the components
of the corrective action plan. This Corrective Action Plan shall be submitted by any local unit of government with at
least one retirement health benefit system that has been determined to have an underfunded status. Underfunded status
for a retirement health system is defined as being less than 40% funded according to the most recent audited financial
statements, and, if the local unit of government is a city, village, township, or county, the annual required contribution
(ARC) for all of the retirement health systems of the local unit of government is greater than 12% of the local unit of
government’s annual governmental fund revenues, based on the most recent fiscal year.

Due Date: The local unit of government has 180 days from the date of notification to submit a corrective action
plan to the Municipal Stability Board. The Board may extend the 180-day deadline by up to an additional 45 days if the
local unit of government submits a reasonable draft of a corrective action plan and requests an extension.

Filing: Per Sec. 10(1) of the Act, this Corrective Action Plan must be approved by the local government's administrative
officer and its governing body. You must provide proof of your governing body approving this Corrective Action
Plan and attach the documentation as a separate PDF document, Per Sec. 10(4)} of the Act, failure to provide
documentation that demonstrates approval from your governing body will result in a determination of noncompliance
by the Board. '

The submitted plan must demonstrate through distinct supporting documentation how and when the local unit will
reach the 40% funded ratio. Or, if the local unit is a city, village, township, or county, the submitted plan may
demonstrate how and when the ARC for all of the retirement healthcare systems will be less than 12% of annual
governmental fund revenues, as defined by the Act. Supporting documentation for the funding ratio and/or ARC must
include an actuarial projection, an actuarial valuation, or an internally developed analysis. The local unit must project
governmental fund revenues using a reasonable forecast based on historical trends and projected rates of inflation.

The completed plan must be submitted via email to Treasury at LocalRetirementReporting@michigan.gov for review by
the Board. If you have multiple underfunded retirement systems, you are required to complete separate
plans and send a separate email for each underfunded system. Please attach each plan as a separate PDF
document in addition to all applicable supporting documentation.

The subject line of the email(s) should be in the following format: Corrective Action Plan-201 7, Local Unit Name,
Retirement System Name (e.g Corrective Action Plan-2017, City of Lansing, Employees’ Retirement System OPEB
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Plan). Treasury will send an automatic reply acknowledging receipt of the email. Your individual email settings must
allow for receipt of Treasury’s automatic reply. This will be the only notification confirming receipt of the application(s).

Municipal Stability Board: The Municipal Stability Board (the Board) shall review and vote on the approval of a
corrective action plan submitted by a local unit of government. If a corrective action plan is approved, the Board will
monitor the corrective action plan for the following two years, and the Board will report on the local unit of
government's compliance with the Act not less than every two years.

Review Process: Following receipt of the email by Treasury, the Board will accept the corrective action plan
submission at the next scheduled meeting of the Board. The Board shall then approve or reject the corrective action
plan within 45 days from the date of the meeting.

Considerations for Approval: A successful corrective action plan will demonstrate the actions for correcting
underfunded status as set forth in Sec. 10(7) of the Act (listed below), as well as any additional solutions to address the
underfunded status. Please also include steps already taken to address your underfunded status, as well as the date
prospective actions will be taken. A local unit of government may also include in its corrective action plan a review of
the local unit of government's budget and finances to determine any alternative methods available to address its
underfunded status. A corrective action plan under this section may include the development and implementation of
corrective options for the local unit of government to address its underfunded status. The corrective options as
described in Sec. 10(7) may include, but are not limited to, any of the following:

(i) Requiring cost sharing of premiums and sufficient copays.
(iiy Capping employer costs.

Implementation: The local unit of government has up to 180 days after the approval of a corrective action plan to
begin to implement the corrective action plan to address its underfunded status. The Board shall monitor each
underfunded local unit of government's compliance with this act and any corrective action plan. The Board shall adopt
a schedule, not less than every 2 years, to certify that the underfunded loca! unit of government is in substantial
compliance with the Act. If the Board determines that an underfunded local unit of government is not in substantial
compliance under this subsection, the Board shall within 15 days provide notification and report to the local unit of
government detailing the reasons for the determination of noncompliance with the corrective action plan. The local
unit of government has 60 days from the date of the notification to address the determination of noncompliance.

-3. DESCRIPTION -OF PRIOR ACTIONS L
Prior actions are separated into three categories below: System Design Changes, Additional Funding, and Other
Considerations. Please provide a brief description of the prior actions implemented by the local government to address
the retirement system’s underfunded status within the appropriate category section. Within each category are sample
statements that you may choose to use to indicate the changes to your system that will positively affect your funded
status. For retirement systems that have multiple divisions, departments, or plans within the same retirement system,
please indicate how these changes impact the retirement system as 2 whole.

» Please Note: If applicable, prior actions listed within your waiver application(s) may also be included in
your cortective action plan,

Piease indicate where in the attached supporting documentation these changes are described and the impact of those
changes (i.e. what has the local unit of government done to improve its underfunded status, and where can we find the
proof of these changes in the supporting documentation?).

Note: Please provide the name of the system impacted, the date you made the change, the relevant page number(s)
within the supporting documentation, and the resulting change to the system's funded ratio.
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Category of Prior Actions:

[ system Design Changes - System design changes may include the following: Changes to coverage levels
(including retiree co-payments, deductibles, and Medicare eligibility), changes to premium cost-sharing, eligibility
changes, switch to defined contribution retiree health care plan, changes to retiree health care coverage for new
hires, etc.

Sample Statement: Benefit levels of the retired membership mirrors the current cofective bargaining agreement for each
class of employee. On January I, 2017, the local unit entered into new collective bargaining agreements with the Command
Officers Association and Internal Association of Firefighters that increased employee co-payments and deductibles for
heatthcare. These coverage changes resulted in an improvement to the retirement system’s funded ratio. Please see page 12 of
the attached actuarial analysis that indicates the system is 40% funded as of June 30, 2017.

0 Additional Funding - Additional funding may include the following: paying the annual required contribution in

addition to retiree premiums, voluntary contributions above the annual required contribution, bonding, millage
increases, restricted funds, etc.,

Sample Statement: The local unit created a qualified trust to receive, invest, and accumulate assets for retirerment
healthcare on June 23, 2016. The local unit of government has adopted a policy to change its funding methodology from Pay-
Go to full funding of the Annual Required Contribution (ARC). Additionally, the locaf unit has committed to contributing $500,000
annuatly, in addition to the ARC for the next five fiscal years. The additional contributions will increase the retirement system’s
funded ratio to 40% by 2022. Please see page 10 of the attached resolution from our governing body demonstrating the
commitment to contribute the ARC and additional $500,000 for the next five years.

Other Considerations — Other considerations may include the following: outdated Form 5572 information,
actuarial assumption changes, amortization policy changes, etc.

Sample Statement: The information provided on the Form 5572 from the audit used actuarial data from 201 5. Attached is
an updated actuarial valuation for 2017 that shows our finded ratio has improved to 42% as indicated on page 13.

‘The City of South Lyon ordered an actuarial vaiuation of Annual Regquired Contribution (ARC) 10 determine contribution for FY
2018/2019 and beyond. The Actuarially Determined Confribution {ADC) was calculated using leval dollar amortization with a 3%
discount rate. The amortization period is a closed, 30-year period. See attachment Ba for additional statsment.

4. DESCRIPTION OF PROSPECTIVE ACTIONS - S o C
The corrective action plan allows you to submit a plan of prospective actions which are separated into three categories
below: System Design Changes, Additional Funding, and Other Considerations. Please provide a brief description of the
prospective actions implemented by the local government to address the retirement system'’s underfunded status
within the appropriate category section. Within each category are sample statements that you may choose to use to
indicate the changes to your system that will positively affect your funded status. For retirement systems that have

multiple divisions, departments, or plans within the same retirement system, please indicate how these changes impact
the retirement system as a whole. :

Page 3



Please indicate where in the attached supporting documentation these changes are described and the impact of those
changes (i.e. what will the local unit of government do to improve its underfunded status, and where can we find the
proof of these changes in the supporting documentation?).

Category of Prospective Actions:

[] System Design Changes - System design changes may include the following: Changes to coverage levels
(including retiree co-payments, deductibles, and Medicare eligibility), changes to premium cost-sharing, eligibility
changes, switch to defined contribution retiree health care plan, changes to retiree health care coverage for new
hires, etc.

Sample Statement: The locaf unit will seek to align benefit levels for the retired membership with each class of active
employees. Beginning with summer 2018 contract negotiations, the local unit will seek revised colective bargaining agreements
with the Command Officers Association and Internal Association of Firefighters to increase employee co-payments
and deductibles for healthcare. These coverage changes would result in an improvement to the retirement system’s funded ratio,
Please see page 12 of the attached actuarial analysis that indicates the system would be 40% funded by fiscal year 2020 if
these changes were adobted and implemented by fiscal year 2019.

Additional Funding - Additional funding may include the following: meeting the annual required contribution in
addition to retiree premiums, voluntary contributions above the annual required contribution, bonding, millage
increases, restricted funds, etc.

Sample Statement: The Jocal unit will create a qualified trust to receive, invest, and accumulate assets for retirement
hedlthcare by December 31, 2018. The local unit of government will adopt a policy to change its funding methodology from
Pay-Go to full funding of the Annual Required Contribution (ARC} by December 31, 2018. Additionally, beginning in fiscal year
2019, the local unit will contribute $500,000 annually in addition to the ARC for the next five fiscal years. The additional
contributions will increase the retirement system’s funded ratio to 40% by 2022. Please see page 10 of the attached resolution
from our governing body demonstrating the commitment to contribute the ARC and additional $500,000 for the next five years.
The City will begin to make normal cost contributions for new employees hired after July 1, 2016. 1Ne normal cost contribution;
calculated by an actuary, will be approximately $5,349. Additionally, the City of South Lyon will begin in fiscal year 2020

to contribute the annual required contribution and a voluntary contribution above the annual required contribution. The
additional voluntary contribution above the annual required confribution will be determined and vary each budget year,

[0 Other Considerations — Other considerations may include the following: outdated Form 5572 information
actuarial assumption changes, amortization policy changes, etc.

)

Sample Statement: Beginning in fiscal year 2019, the focal unit will begin amortizing the unfunded portion of the
healthcare liability using a fevel-dollar amortization method over a closed period of 10 years. This wifl aflow the
health system to reach a funded status of 42% by 2022 as shown in the attached actuarial analysis on page 13.
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5. CONFIRMATION OF FUNDING
P

lease check the applicable answer:

Do the corrective actions listed in this plan allow for (insert local unit name) City of South Lyon
to make, at a minimum, the retiree premium payment, as well as the normal cost payments for all new hires (if
applicable), for the retirement health benefit system according to your long-term budget forecast?

Yes
0 No
If No, Explain

6. DOCUMENTATION ATTACHED TO THIS.CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN - _ _
Documentation should be attached as a .pdf to this corrective action plan. The documentation should detail the
corrective action plan that would be implernented to adequately address the local unit of government’s underfunded

status. Please check all documents that are included as part of this plan and attach in successive order as provided
below:

Naming convention: when attaching documents please use the naming convention shown below. If there is more
than one document in a specific category that needs to be submitted, include a, b, or ¢ for each document. For
example, if you are submitting two supplemental valuations, you would name the first document “Attachment 2a” and
the second document “Attachment 2b".

Naming Convention Type of Document
Attachment — | This Corrective Action Plan (Required)
Attachment — ia Documentation from the governing body approving this

Corrective Action Plan (Required)

Attachment — 2a An actuarial projection, an actuarial valuation, or an
internally developed analysis, which illustrates how and
when the local unit will reach the 40% funded ratio. Or,
if the local unit is a city, village, township, or county,
ARC will be less than 12% of governmental fund
revenues, as defined by the Act. (Required)

[1 Attachment - 3a Documentation of additional payments in past years that is not
reflected in your audited financial statements (e.g. enacted
budget, system provided information).

] Attachment - 4a Documentation of commitment to additional payments in future
years (e.g. resolution, ordinance)

[ Attachment — 5a A separate corrective action plan that the local unit has
approved to address its underfunded status, which includes
documentation of prior actions, prospective actions, and the
positive impact on the system’s funded ratio

Attachment — éa Other documentation, not categorized above
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7. CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN CRITERIA

Please confirm that each of the four corrective action plan criteria listed below have been satisfied when submitting
this document. Specific detail on corrective action plan criteria can be found in the Corrective Action Plan

Development: Best Practices and Strategies document.

Corrective Action Plan Criteria Description

Underfunded Status Is there a description and adequate supporting documentation
of how and when the retirement system will reach the 40%
funded ratio? Or, if your local unit is a city, village, township, or
county, how and when the ARC of all retirement healthcare
systems will be less than [2 percent of governmental fund
revenues?

Reasonable Timeframe Do the corrective actions address the underfunded status in a
reasonable timeframe (see CAP criteria issued by the Board)?

Legal and Feasible Does the corrective action plan follow all applicable laws? Are
all required administrative certifications and governing body
approvals included? Are the actions listed feasible?

Affordability Do the corrective action(s} listed allow the local unit to make
the retiree healthcare premium payment, as well as normal cost
payment for new hires now and into the future without
additional changes to this corrective action plan?

.. LOCAL UNIT OF GOVERNMENT’S ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER APPROVAL 0|= CORRECTIVE
. ACTION PLAN - R - .

|, Paul Zelenak , as the government s admlmstratlve officer (lnsert tltle)

City Manager (Ex City/Township Manager, Executive director, and Chief Executive
Officer, etc.) approve this Corrective Action Plan and will implement the prospective actions contained in this
Corrective Action Plan.

I confirm to the best of my knowledge that because of the changes listed above, one of the following statements will
occur:

L] The {Insert Retirement Healthcare System Name) will
achieve a funded status of at least 40% by Fiscal Year as demonstrated by required supporting
documentation listed in section 6.

OR, if the local unit is a city, village, township, or county:

The ARC for all of the retirement healthcare systems of _City of South Lyon (Insert
local unit name) will be less than 12% of the local unit of government's annual governmental fund revenues by
Fiscal Year _6/30/18 as demonstrated by required supporting documentation listed in section 6.

Signature Date
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Attachment —6a

Section 5(4){a) of Public Act 202 of 2017 defines underfunded status for a retirement health system of
the local unit of government as less than 40% funded AND if the local unit is a City, Village, Township, or

County, annual reguired contribution (ARC) is greater than 12% of the local unit of government’s annual
general fund operating revenues.

©  While the City did not have a valuation as of 6/30/18 calculating the ARC, the City's total
OPEB liability is less than 12% of general fund revenue. The City’s Total OPEB Liability is
5464,775 (page 29 of the attached June 30, 2018 audited financial statement —
“Attachment — 6b”). Also, see Attachment — 2a for actuarial valuation. The City’s general fund
revenue was $5,923,979 (Page 12 of the attached June 30, 2018 audited financial statement).
12% of revenue is $710,877.

¢ Subsequent to issuing the City’s 6/30/2019 financial statements, an ADC was calculated for
Fiscal Year 2018/2019 and it was approximately $61,000.

e Asshown above, the City does not believe we are in underfunded status as of June 30, 2018.
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Independent Auditor's Report

" “To the Mayor and Members of the City Colingil 7 e e
City of South Lyon, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of South Lyon, Michigan (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of South Lyon, Michigan's basic
financial statements, as listed in the table of cantents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal contro! relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial -
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement. T e e e e

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of South Lyon, Michigan as of
June 30, 2018 and the respective changes in its financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 12 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2018, the City adopted new
accounting guidance of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards for postemployment benefits other than pensions provided to the employees of state and local
governments. Qur opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Praxity:

1 GLOBAL ALLIANCE OF
INOEPEHDERT FIAMS



To the Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of South Lyon, Michigan

Required Supplemental Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and the required supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of South Lyon, Michigan's basic financial statements. The other supplemental information, as
identified in the table of contents, and statistical section schedules are presented for the purpose of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The other supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underiying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stiates of
America. In our opinion, the other supplemental information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

The statistical section schedules have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

7‘%«:‘., f M, PLLL

September 24, 2018



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of South Lyon, Michigan (the "City"), we offer readers this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Financial Highlights

As discussed in further detail in this management’s discussion and analysis, the following represents the most
significant financial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2018:

* Revenue exceeded expenditures in the General Fund, thus increasing fund balance by approximately
$609,000. This was higher than the final amended budget, which expected an increase of approximately
$315,000.

» Total net position related to the City’s governmental activities increased by approximately $135,000.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net position and the statement of
activities provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City's
finances. This longerterm view uses the accrual basis of accounting so that it can measure the cost of providing
services during the current year and whether the taxpayers have funded the full cost of providing government
services. ‘

The fund financial statements present a shori-term view; they tell the reader how the taxpayers’ resources were
spent during the year, as well as how much is available for future spending. Fund financial statements also report
the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements by providing information about
the City's most significant funds.

Government-wide Overall Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position over time may serve as a useful indfcator of a government's financial position. In the
case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by
$49,147 407 at the close of the most recent fiscal vear.



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

City's Net Position

The following table shows, in a condensed format, the net position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2018 2017~ 2018 2017 2018 2017+
Assetls
Current and other assets $ 0,848,474 $ 8,382,432 $ 10,017,749 $ 9,576,120 $ 19,866,223 $ 17,958,552
Capital assets 17,762,082 18,918,228 28,021,677 _ 20042590  45773,759 47,980,818
Totat assets 27,600,556 27,300,660 38,039,426 38,618,710 65,638,982 65,819,370
Deferred Outflows of
Resources 445 116 847 647 106,162 186,283 551,278 1,033,930
Liabilities
Current liabilities 416,049 456,777 135,561 172,169 551,610 628,946
Noncurrent liabilities 4,732,736 5,169,340 11,178,547  12,244354 15911283 17,413,694
Total liabilities 5,148,785 5626117 11,314,108 12416523 16,462,803 18,042,640
Deferred Inflows of Resources 467 898 125,781 113,062 27,642 580,960 153,423
Net Position
Net investrment in capital
assets 17,456,806 18,658,228 17,899,208 17,930,211 35,356,194 36,588,439
Restricted 3,073,617 2,569,345 4,644,059 4,465,721 7,717,676 7,025,068
Unrestricted 1,898,476 1,178,836 4,175,061 3,964,895 6,073,537 5,143,732
Total net
position $ 22,428,989 § 22,396,409 $ 26,718,418 $ 26,360,828 § 49,147,407 $ 48,757,237

* GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented by the City in fiscal year 2018. Fiscal year 2017 amounts shown have
not been modified to reflect the retroactive application of the change.



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

City's Changes in Net Position

The following table shows the changes of the net position during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2018 2017~ 2018 2017* 2018 2017*
Revenue
Program revenue: .
Charges for services $ 538228 § 485715 $ 3,126571 $ 3,076,063 $ 3,664,799 § 3,541,778
Operating grants 1,127,480 759,717 - - 1,127,480 759,717
Capital grants 32,635 98,468 189,917 217,030 222,552 315,498
General revenue:
Taxes 4,231,954 3,800,669 1,127,871 1,084,099 5,359,825 4,884,768
Intergovernmental 1,038,095 1,133,641 - - 1,038,095 1,133,641
Investment earnings 37,472 14,232 37.011 14,135 74,483 28,367
Other revenue 425235 424,149 - - 425,235 424,149
Total revenue 7,431,098 6,696,591 4,481,370 4,391,327 11912469 11,087,918
Expenses
General government 1,432,587 1,417,622 - - 1,432,587 1,417,622
Public safety 3,050,107 3,335,896 - - 3,050,107 3,335,896
Community maintenance and
development 2,322,647 2,444,337 - - 2,322 647 2,444 337
Community and economic
development 196,925 162,162 - - 196,925 162,162
Recreation and culture 271,499 270,665 - - 271,499 270,665
Debt service 22,336 18,325 - - 22,336 18,325
Water and sewer - - 4,097,323 4,096,636 4,007,323 4,006 636
Total expenses 7,296,101 7,648,907 4,097,323 4,098,636 11,393,424 11,745,543
Change in Net Position $ 134,998 § (952,316) $ 384,047 $ 294691 $ 519,045 3 (657,625)

*GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented by the City in fiscal year 2018. Fiscal year 2017 amounts shown have
not been modified to reflect the retroactive application of the change.

Governmental Activities

The City's total governmental expenses decreased year over year by approximately $353,000. The City has been
closely monitoring expenses, seeking to reduce them when possible.

Business-type Activities

The City's business-type activities consist of the Water and Sewer Fund. The City provides water distribution and
sewage treatment to residents from the City-owned water supply and treatment facility. Expenses remained
relatively consistent, decreasing by approximately $700, as the City did not have any major repair and

maintenance costs in the current year.



City of South Lyon, Michigan
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Financial Analysis of Individual Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In
particular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for
discretionary use, as it represents the portion of the fund balance that has not yet been limited to use for a
particular purpose by an external party. Uncommitted or unassigned fund balance provides further information
about the resources that have not been constrained by either the City Council, or a group or individual that has
been delegated authority to assign resources for use for particular purposes by the City Council.

Within these governmental funds, the General Fund is the most significant to understanding the City’s financial
activities. The General Fund pays for most of the City's governmental services. The most significant is the police
department, which incurred expenses of approximately $2,365,000 in 2018. Other governmental services
accounted for in the General Fund include general government, the department of public works, the fire
department, and recreation. In addition, the Water and Sewer Fund is a significant enterprise activity for the City.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City amended the budget to account for changes made necessary due to
unanticipated events or situations requiring the decrease of expenditures for operational and capital expenditures.
While the original budget of the General Fund projected a small increase in fund balance, the amended budget
projected an approximate $315,000 increase in fund balance. The actual increase of fund balance was
approximately $609,000.

Total General Fund revenue was approximately $81,500 more than the amended budget primarily due to more
property tax revenue and licenses and permits than expected. General Fund expenditures were approximately
$213,000 less than the amended budget. Police expenditures, in particular, were approximately $167,000 under
budget due to lower-than-expected purchases of capital equipment and lower-than-expected employee-related
expenditures. Public works expenditures, in particular, were approximately $59,000 under budget due to lower-
than-anticipated employee expenditures related to vacancy in the DPW director position during the fiscal year.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

At the end of 2018, the City had approximately $46 million (after depreciation) invested in a broad range of capital
assets, including buildings, roads, police and fire equipment, and water and sewer lines. Outstanding debt of the
governmental and business-type activities totaled approximately $10.4 million as of June 30, 2018. For additional
information related to capital assets and debt, please see Notes 4 and 6, respectively.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The City's budget for next year takes into consideration many factors anticipated to impact the budget. Among
them are relatively flat property taxes, as taxable value (in both the housing and commercial markets) is projected
to increase only slightly, and a decline in water and sewer sales. However, given our healthy fund balance, we do
not anticipate any reductions in service levels based on potential revenue reductions. Over the years, the City has
had the flexibility to adjust various ad valorem tax rates as necessary and as determined by Headlee, Truth in
Taxation, and Proposal A. The statewide tax reform acts limit growth in taxable value to infiation or 5 percent,
whichever is less. Inflation rates in recent years have only been in the range of 1.5 percent to 3.0 percent.

Requests for Further Information

This financial report is intended fo provide a general overview of the City's finances and demonstrate the City's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information,
please contact the city manager's office.



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Statement of Net Position

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents {Note 3)
Receivables:
Customer receivables
Other receivables
Due from other governmental units
Due from component unit
Internal balances
Prepaid expenses
Restricted assets (Note 1)
investment In joint venture (Note 8)
Land held for resale
Capital assets: (Note 4)
Assets not subject to depreciation
Assets subject to depreciation - Nat

Total assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources - Deferred pension

costs (Notes @ and 10)
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other governmental units
Due to primary government
Cash bonds and deposits
Accrued liabilities and other
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bue within one year:
Compensated absences (Note 6)
Current portion of long-term debt (Noie 6)
Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences (Note 6)
Net pension liability (Note 10)
Net OPEB liability {Note 9)
Long-term debt (Note 6)

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Deferred pension
and OPEB cost reductions (Notes 9 and 10)

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Road improvements
Law enforcement
Cemetery
Parks and recreation capital improvements
Water and sewer replacement
Unrestricted

Total net position

See notes to financial statements.

June 30, 2018
Primary Government Component Unit
Downtown
Governmental Business-type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority
$ 8,430,096 §$ 4,570,638 $ 13,000,734 $ 23,034
109,930 905,344 1,015,274 -
11,791 - 11,791 -
478,588 - - 478,588 -
- 631 631 -
135,539 (135,539) - -
161,286 32,616 193,802 -
- 4,644,059 4,644,069 -
468,244 - 468,244 -
53,000 - 53,000 -
3,217,812 178,416 3,396,228 -
14,534,270 27,843 261 42 377,531 -
27,600,556 38,039,426 65,638,982 23,934
445116 106,162 551,278 -
107,861 49,491 157,352 741
2,003 - 2,003 -
- - ©- 631
163,545 - 163,545 -
142,840 86,070 228,710 -
173,600 38,200 211,800 -
173,318 1,020,000 1,193,318 -
173,626 38,139 211,765 -
3,718,504 886,874 4,605,378 -
371,820 92,9855 464,775 -
121,868 9,102,379 0,224 247 ~
5,148,785 11,314,108 16,462,893 1,372
467,898 113,062 580,860 -
17,456,896 17,899,298 35,356,194 -
2,226,025 “ 2,226,025 -
50,223 - 50,223 -
779,090 - 779,090 -
18,279 - 18,279 -
- 4,644 059 4,644,059 -
1,808,476 4,175,061 6,073,537 22,562
$ 22428989 $ 26,718,418 $ 49,147,407 $ 22,562




City of South Lyon, Michigan

Program Revenue

Operating  Capital Grants

Charges for Grants and and
Expenses Services Coniribufions  Contributions
Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 1,432,587 % 498,990 $ - % -
Public safety - Police, fire, and EMS 3,050,107 39,238 3,442 -
Community maintenance and
development 2,322 647 - 1,048,759 -
Community and economic
development 196,925 - 75,279 32,635
Recreation and culture 271,499 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 22,336 - - -
Total governmental activities 7,296,101 538,228 1,127,480 32,635
Business-type activities - Water and
sewer 4,097,323 3,126,571 - 189,917
Total primary government $ 11,393,424 $ 3,664,799 $ 1,127,480 $ 222552
Cemponent units - Downtown Development
Authority $ 63,212 $ - & 10,990 % -

General revenue:
Property taxes
Unrestricted state-shared revenue
Unrestricted investment income
Cable franchise fees
Incormne from joint venture
Other miscellaneous income

Total general revenue
Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of year - As restated (Note 12)

Net Position - End of year

See notes to financial statements. 8



Statement of Activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Downtown
Govemmental Business Type Development
Activities Activities Total Authority
3 (933,597) $ - % (933,597) $ -
(3,007,427) - (3,007.427) -
(1,273,888) - (1,273,888) -
(89,011) - (89,011) -
(271,499) - {271,499) -
(22,336) - (22,336) -
(5,597,758) - {5,597,758) -
- (780,835) (780,835) -
(5,597,758) {780,835) (6,378,593) -
- - - (52,222)
4,231,954 1,127,871 5,359,825 21,496
1,038,095 - 1,038,095 -
37472 37,011 74,483 373
136,659 - 136,659 -
58,660 - 59,660 -
228,916 - 228,916 -
5,732,756 1,164,882 6,897,638 21,869
134,998 384,047 519,045 (30,353)
22,293,991 26,334,371 48,628,362 52,915
$ 22428989 $ 26,718,418 § 49,147,407 $ 22,562

Year Ended June 30, 2018



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Governmental Funds
Balance Sheeét

June 30, 2018

Total
Governmental
General Fund  Nonmajor Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 3 3,069,317 § 5,360,779 $ 8,430,096
Receivables: .
Customer receivables 109,930 - 109,930
Other receivables 11,791 - 1,791
Due from other governmental units 333,266 145,322 478,588
Due from other funds (Note 5) 171,204 12,509 183,713
Prepaid expenses 155,620 5,666 161,286
Land held for resale - 53,000 53,000
Total assets $ 3,851,128 $ 5,577,276 $ 9,428,404
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 104,332 $ - 3,529 $ 107,861
Due to other governmental units 1,685 318 2,003
Due to other funds - 48174 48,174
Cash bonds and deposits 163,545 - 163,545
Accrued liabilities and other 134,192 3,405 137,597
Total liabilities 403,754 55,426 459,180
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Unavailable revenue 173,495 - 173,495
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Land held for resale - 53,000 53,000
Prepaids 155,620 5,666 161,286
Restricted:
Roads - 2,220,359 2,220,359
Police - 50,223 50,223
Cemetery perpetual care - 779,090 779,090
Parks and recreation capital improvements 18,279 - 18,279
Committed:
Capital improvements 167,605 1,834,718 2,002,323
Land acquisition - 88,189 88,189
Equipment replacement - 462,042 462,042
Assigned - Debt - 28,563 28,563
Unassigned 2,932,375 - 2,932,375
Total fund balances 3,273,879 5,521,850 8,795,729
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
rescurces, aﬁd fund balall‘I?:es $ 3,851,128 § 5,577,276 § 9,428,404

See notes to financial statements. 10



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018

Fund Balance Reported in Governmental Funds $ 8,795,729

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are difference
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and are not
reported in the funds 17,752,082

Receivables that are not collected soon after year end are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds 173,485

Investments in joint ventures are not financial resources and are not reported in the
funds 488,244

Bonds payable and capital lease obligations are not due and payable in the current
period and are not reported in the funds {295,186}

Accrued interest is not due and payable in the current period and is not reported in the
funds (5,043)

Some employee fringe benefits are payable over a fong period of years and do not
represent a claim on current financial resources; therefore, they are not reported as

fund liabilities:
Employee compensated absences (347,226)
Pension benefits e . (3,613,681)
Retiree healthcare benefits (499 ,425)
Net Position of Governmentat Activities $ 22,428,989

See notes to financial statements. 11



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended June 30, 2018
Total
Governmental
General Fund  Nonmajor Funds Funds
Revenue
Property taxes $ 3,930,894 $ 301,060 $ 4,231,954
Intergovernmental: _
Federal grants - 75,279 75,279
State and local sources:
State-shared revenue 989,507 - 989,507
Act 51 gas and weight tax - 1,048,759 1,048,752
Local Community Stabilization Authority 162,498 - 162,496
Metro act - 30,233 30,233
Local grants and contributions - 32,635 32,635
Charges for services 82,851 152,105 234,956
Fines and forfeitures 39,238 - 39,238
Licenses and permits 467 266 - 467,266
Investment income and other 13,529 103,635 117,164
GCther revenue 238,198 - 238,198
Total revenue 5,923,979 1,743,706 7,667,685
Expenditures
Current services:
General government 1,396,927 - 1,396,927
Public safety 2,838,250 - 2,836,250
Community mairntenance and development 830,589 505,817 1,336,406
Community and economic development - 71,486 71,486
Recreation and culture 250,809 - 250,809
Debt service - 181,642 181,642
Total expenditures 5,314,575 758,945 6,073,520
Net Change in Fund Balance 609,404 984,761 1,594,165
Fund Balance - Beginning of year 2,664,475 4,537,089 7,201,564
Fund Balance - End of year $ 3,273,879 % 5,521,850 $ 8,795,729

See notes to financial statements. 12



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balances Reported in Governmental Funds $ 1,594,165

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the statement of
activities, these costs are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation:

Capital outlay 76,812
Depreciation expense (1,440,364)
Revenue in the statement of activities that does not provide current financial resources is
not reported as revenue in the funds until it is available (144,141)
Change in investment in joint venture is not recorded in the governmental funds, but is
recorded in the statement of activities 59,660
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but not in the
staternent of activities (where it reduces long-term debt) 162,220
Interest expense is recognized in the government-wide statements as it accrues (2,914)

Some employee costs (pension, OPEB, and compensated absences) do not reguire the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
the governmental funds {170,440)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 134,998

See notes to financial statements. 13



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Proprietary Fund - Water and Sewer Fund
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 4,570,638
Receivables - Customer receivables 905,344
Due from component unit (Note 5) 6831
Prepaid expenses 32,618
Total current assets 5,509,229
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets (Note 1) 4,644 059
Capital assets (Note 4) 28,021,877
Total noncurrent assets 32,665,736
Total assets 38,174,965
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Deferred pension and OPEB costs (Notes 9 and 10) 108,162
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 49,491
DPue to other funds (Note 5) 135,539
Accrued liahilities and other 86,070
Compensated absences (Note 6) 38,200
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 6) 1,020,000
Total current liabilities 1,329,300
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences (Note 8) 38,139
Net pension fiability (Note 10) 886,874
Net OPEB liability (Note 8) 92,955
Long-term debt (Note &) 9,102 379
Total noncurrent liabilities 10,120,347
Total liabilities 11,449,647
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Deferred pension cost reductions (Notes 9 and 10) 113,062
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 17,899,295
Restricted - Water and sewer replacement 4 644 059
Unrestricted 4,175,081
Total net position $ 26,718418

See notes to financial statements. 14



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Proprietary Fund - Water and Sewer Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2018
Cperating Revenue

Sale of water 3 1,236,238
Sewage disposal charges 1,247,024
Refuse collection 507,817
Billing and collection charges 119,721
Hydrant rental 2,500
Other income 13,271
Total operating revenue 3,126,571
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 597,853
Fringe benefits 407,188
Equipment repair and maintenance 221,519
Public utilities 328,694
Refuse collection 503,262
Other services and charges 85,221
Supplies 208,826
Insurance 27,578
Other 1,329
Depreciation 1,456,121
Total operating expenses 3,837,389
Operating Loss {710,818)
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Property tax revenue 1,127,871
Investment income 37,011
Interest expense {259,934)
Total nonoperating revenue 904,948
Income - Before capital contributions 194,130
Capital Contributions - Tap-in fees 189,917
Change in Net Position : 384,047
Net Position - Beginning of year - As restated (Note 12) 26,334,371
Net Position - End of year § 26,718,418

See notes to financial statements. 15



City of South Lyon, Michigan

Proprietary Fund - Water and Sewer Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Receipts from interfund services and reimbursements
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees and fringes

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Collection of tap-in fees
Property taxes revenue received
Purchase of capital assets
Principal and interest paid on capital debt

Net cash and cash equivalents used in capital and related financing activities
Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities - Interest received on investments
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year

Classification of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and invesiments
Restricted cash

Total cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash from Operating Activities
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Due to and from cther funds
Prepaid and other assets
Accounts payable
Net pension or OPEB liability
Deferrals related to pension or OPEB
Acerued and cther ligbifities

Total adjustments

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating activities

See notes to financial statements. 16

$ 3,137,090
134,491

(1,390,661)

(961,970)

918,950

189,917
1,127,871

(435,208)

(1,256,121)

(373,541)
37,011

582,420
8,632,277

$ 9,214,697

$ 4,570,638
4,644,059

$ 9,214,697

$ (710,818)
1,456,121

10,519
134,491

(4.219)
(10,013}
(68,248)
165,541
(54,424)

1,629,768
$ 918,950




City of South Lyon, Michigan

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

The City of South Lyon, Michigan (the "City") is governed by an elected seven-member council. The
accompanying financial statements present the City and its component unit, an entity for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. The blended component unit is, in substance, part of the City's
operations, even though it is a separate legal entity. Thus, the blended component unit is appropriately
presented as a fund of the City. The discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column
in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.

Blended Component Units

The South Lyon Building Authority (the "Building Authority"} is governed by a board appointed by the City's
governing body. Although it is legally separate from the City, the Building Authority is reported as if it were
part of the primary govemment because its sole purpose is to acquire and lease property to the City.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Downtown Development Authority

The Downtown Development Authority (the "DDA") was created to correct and prevent deterioration in the
downtown district, encourage historical preservation, and promote economic growth within the downtown
district. The DDA's governing body, which consists of nine individuals, is appointed by the city manager
and confirmed by the City Council. In addition, the DDA's budget is subject to approval by the City Council.
The DDA does not issue a separate financial report.

Accounting and Reporting Principles

The City of South Lyon, Michigan follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP} as applicable to governmental units. Accounting and financial reporting pronouncements
are promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is a summary
of the significant accounting policies used by the City:

Report Presentation

Governmental accounting principles require that financial repotts include two different perspectives - the
government-wide perspective and the fund-based perspective. The government-wide financial statements
(i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the
nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its compenent unit. The government-wide financial
statements are presented on the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of
accounting. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met The statements also present a schedule reconciling these amounts to the modified
accrual-based presentation found in the fund-based statements.,

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenue includes: (1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenue are reported instead as general revenue.,

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Exceptions to
this general rule are charges between the City's water and sewer function and various other functions of
the City. Eliminations of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the
various functions concerned.
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Fund Accounting

The City accounts for its various activities in several different funds in order to demonstrate accountability
for how we have spent certain resources; separate funds allow us to show the particular expenditures for
which specific revenue was used. The various funds are aggregated info two broad fund types:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds include all activities that provide general governmental services that are not
business-type activities. This includes the General Fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, and
capital project funds. The City only reports the General Fund as a "major’ governmental fund. The
General Fund is the primary operating fund because it accounts for all financial resources used to provide
general government services, other than those specifically assigned to another fund.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds include enterprise funds (which provide goods or services to users in exchange for
charges or fees). The City reports only the Water and Sewer Fund as a "major” enterprise fund. The
Water and Sewer Fund provides water to customers and disposes of sanitary sewage in exchange for
user charges.

Interfund Activity

During the course of operations, the City has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual
balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other
funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in
the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances bstween the funds included in
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Simitarly, balances between the funds
included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as internal balances in the business-type activities column.

Furthermore, certain activity occurs during the year invalving transfers of resources between funds. In
fund financial statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers infout. While
reported in fund financial statements, ceriain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-
wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated
so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly,
balances between the funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount
is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.

Basis of Accounting

The governmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is intended to better demonstrate accountability for how the
government has spent its resources.

Expenditures are reported when the goods are received or the services are rendered. Capital outlays are
reported as expenditures (rather than as capital assets) because they reduce the ability to spend
resources in the future; conversely, employee benefit costs that will be funded in the future (such as
pension and retiree healthcare-related costs or sick and vacation pay) are not counted until they come due
for payment. In addition, debt service expenditures, claims, and judgments are recorded only when
payment is due.
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue is not recognized until it is collected, or collected soon enough after the end of the year that it is
available to pay for obligations outstanding at the end of the year. For this purpose, the City considers
amounts collected within 60 days of year end to be available for recognition. The following major revenue
sources meet the availability criterion: some state-shared revenue, some state gas and weight tax
revenue, and interest associated with the current fiscal period. Conversely, some state-shared revenue
will be collected after the period of availability; receivables have been recorded for these, along with a
"deferred inflow."

Proprietary funds use the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of
accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Specific Balances and Transactions

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposite, and short-term investments with a
maturity of three months or less when acquired. Investments are stated at fair value.

Prepaid ltems

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consist of cash and cash equivalents held for water and wastewater system
improvements and equipment replacement. included in this amount is a portion of water and sewer tap-in
fees required by local ordinance to be restricted for improvements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, intangible assets, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City
as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $2,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Interest incurred during the construction of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Infrastructure, buildings, equi'pment, and vehicles are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following useful lives:

Depreciable Life -

Years
Wastewater treatment plant and equipment 10-40
Water treatment plant and equipment 10-40
Utility system, buildings, and improvements 7-40
Roads and sidewalks 20-25
Other tools, furniture, and equipment 15-40
Tools, furniture, and equiprment 5-15
Office furnishings 57
Other tools and equipment 37
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, fong-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of net position. Bond
issuance costs are expensed at the time they are incurred. The General Fund and debt service funds are
generally used to liquidate governmental long-term debt.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position
that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditurs)
until then. The government-wide statements and proprietary funds report deferred outflows from the
change in assumptions of the pension plan, as well as city contributions made after the measurement date
of the net pension liability.

In addition fo liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. The government-wide statements and proprietary funds report deferred inflows from the difference
between projected and actual experience of the pension and OPEB plans, difference between projected
and actual investment earnings of the pension plan, and changes in assumptions of the OPEB plan.
Unavailable revenue qualifies for reporting in this category and arises only under a modified accrual basis
of accounting. The General Fund reports unavailable revenue from certain state-shared revenue. These
amounts are deferred and recoghized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become
available.

Net Position Fiow Assumpiion

Sometimes, the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or
grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net
position and unrestricted net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is
the government's policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net
position is applied.

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes, the City will fund outiays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental
fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be mads about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. it is the City's policy to consider restricted fund balance fo have been depleted
before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Furthermore, when the components of
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first
followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied [ast.

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The City itself can establish imitations on
the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund batance) or an assignment (assigned
fund balance).
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2018
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority. The City
Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the government that can, by adoption of a
resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed
by the resolution remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another resolution) fo
remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for specific
purposes, but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The City Council has by resolution
authorized the city manager to assign fund balance. The City Council may also assign fund balance as it
does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in
the subsequent year's appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the remaval of an
assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a
commitment.

Properity Tax Reveniue

Properties are assessed as of December 31. The related property taxes are billed on July 1 and become a
lien on December 1 of the following year. Taxes are dus on September 30 with the final collection date of
February 28. Taxes are considered delinquent on March 1, at which time penalties and interest are
assessed,

The City's 2017 property tax revenue was levied and collectible on July 1, 2017 and is recognized as
revenue in the year ended June 30, 2018 when the proceeds of the levy are budgeted and available for
the financing of operations.

The 2017 taxable valuation of the City totaled $342 milfion (a portion of which is abated and a portion of
which is captured by the DDA), on which taxes levied consisted of 11.9338 mills for operating purposes
and 3.3000 mills for debt service. This resulted in $4.1 million for operating and $1.1 million for debt
service. These amounts are recognized in the respective general, capital projects, debt service, and
enterprise fund financial statements as tax revenue.

Pension

The City offers pension benefits to retirees. The City records a net pension liability for the difference
between the total pension liability calculated by the actuary and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position.
For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
pension plan and additions to/deductions from the pension plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the pension plan. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Other Postemployment Benefit Costs

The City offers a monthly healthcare stipend to qualified retirees. The City records a net OPEB liability for
the difference between the total OPEB Hiability calculated by the actuary and the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net
position. The City to date has not set aside any funds towards this liability, hence the unfunded net CPEB
liability is equal to the total OPEB liability calculated by the actuary.
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June 30, 2018
Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave)

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick and vacation pay benefits.
Sick pay and vacation pay are accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. A
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only for employee terminations as of year
end. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in subsequent fiscal years) for
governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item between the fund and
government-wide presentations. Generally, the funds that report each employee’s compensation (the
General Fund, Major and Local Roads funds, and Water and Sewer Fund, primarily} are used to liquidate
the cobligations.

Proprietary Funds Operating Classification

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the
Water and Sewer Fund and internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The
Water and Sewer Fund also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover
the cost of connecting new customers to the system, property taxes, and investment income. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reporied as
nonoperating revenue and expenses.

Use of Esfimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and [iabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This statement establishes
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. An activity meeting the criteria
should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. The City is currently evaluating the
impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement
are effective for the City's financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2020.

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, which improves accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single
model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to
use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources. The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial
statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective for the City's financial statements
for the year ending June 30, 2021.
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June 30, 2018
.Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In March 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements, This statement establishes criteria to improve the information that is
disclosed in the notes fo the government financial statements refated to debt, including direct
borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when
disclosing information related to debt. The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on
the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective for the City's
financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2018.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Budgeted Funds

During the year, the City incurred expenditures in the General Fund that were in excess of the amounts
budgeted, as follows:

Budget Actual
General government $ 1,363,325 § 1,396,927
Cable ' e 3,650 4,321

General government and cable were over budget due to unexpected expenditures being charged to the
City for services provided prior to June 30, 2018,

Construction Code Fees

The City oversees building construction, in accordance with the State's Construction Code Act, including
inspection of building construction and renovation to ensure comptiance with the building codes. The City
charges fees for these services. The law requires that collection of these fees be used only for
construction code costs, including an allocation of estimated overhead costs. A summary of the current
year activity and the cumulative surplus or shorifall generated since January 1, 2000 is as follows:

Shorifall at July 1, 2017 $ (1,186,846)
Current year permit revenue 325,925
Related expenses:

Direct costs $ 304,322

Estimated indirect costs 10,702 315,024
Current year surplus 10,801
Cumulative shortfall June 30, 2018 $  (1,175,845)

Note 3 - Deposits and Investments

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes local
governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions,
and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The law also allows investments outside
the State of Michigan when fully insured. The local unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other
direct obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States: repurchase
agreements; bankers’ acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two highest
classifications, which matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the State
of Michigan or its political subdivisions, which are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds composed
of investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by local units of government in Michigan.,

The City has designated three banks for the deposit of its funds. The investment policy adopted by the
City Council in accordance with Public Act 196 of 1997 has authorized investment in bonds and securities
of the United States government and bank accounts and CDs and such obligations, bonds, and securities
as permitted by the statutes of the State of Michigan.
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June 30, 2018
Note 3 - Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The City's cash and investments are subject to custodial credit risk, which is examined in more detail
below:

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to
it. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, the City had approximately
$16,923,000 of bank deposits {checking and savings accounts) that was uninsured and uncollateralized.
The component unit did not have any bank deposits that were uninsured and uncollateralized. The City
believes that due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical
to insure all deposits. As a result, the City evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits funds
and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an acceptable estimated risk
level are used as depositories.

Note 4 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity of the City's governmental and business-type activities was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Balance Disposals and Balance
July 1, 2017 Addifions Adjustments June 30, 2018
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land $ 3,207,804 % 629 $ - % 3,208,433
Canstruction in progress 9,379 - - 9,379
Subtotal 3,217,183 629 - 3,217,812
Capital assets being depreciated:;
Roads and sidewalks 23,740,929 10,105 - 23,751,034
Buildings and improvements 8,249,738 15,803 - 9,265,641
Other tools, furniture, and
equipment 5,411,306 247,581 - 5,658,887
Subtotal 38,401,973 273,589 - 38,675,562
Accumulated depreciation:
Roads and sidewalks 14,120,867 874,513 - 14,995,380
Buildings and improvements 4,350,281 298,165 - 4,648,448
Other tools, furniture, and
equipment 4,229,780 267,686 - 4,497 466
Subtotal 22,700,928 1,440,364 - 24,141,292
Nst capital assets being
depreciated 15,701,045 {1,166,775) - 14,534,270
Net capital assets $ 18918228 $  (1,166,146) § - $ 17,752,082
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Note 4 - Capital Assets {Continued)

Business-fype Activities

June 30, 2018

Balance Disposals and Balance
July 1, 2017 Additions Adjustments June 30, 2018
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land $ 147,317 % - 3 - % 147,317
Construction in progress 31,090 - - 31,009
Subtotal 178,416 - - 178,416
Capital assets being depreciated:
Wastewater freatment plant and
equipment 33,656,840 27,704 - 33,684,544
Water treatment plant and
equipment 3,053,992 39,045 - 3,083,037
Uiility systems, buildings, and
improvements 17,608,757 360,209 - 17,969,056
Other tools, furniture, and
equipment 1,344,609 © 8,160 - 1,352,769
Subtotal 55,664,198 435,208 - 56,099,406
Accumulated depreciation - Total
water and sewer 26,800,024 1,456,121 - 28,256,145
Net capital assets being
depreciated 28,864,174 (1,020,813) - 27,843,261
Net capital assets $ 20042590 5  (1,020913) § - % 28021677
Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 118,029
Public safety 148,713
Public works 1,119,436
Recreation and culture 54,186
Total governmental activities $ 1,440,364
Business-type activities - Water and sewer $ 1,456,121
Note 5 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
The composition of interfund balances is as follows:
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Waiter and Sewer Fund $ 132,344
Nonmajor governmental funds 38,860
Total General Fund 171,204
Nonmajor governmental funds Water and Sewer Fund 3,195
Nonmajor governmental funds Nonmajor governmental funds 9,314
Total 3 183,713
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Note 5 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers (Continued)

The balance of amounts loaned to discretely presented component units is as follows:

June 30, 2018

Receivable Payable Amount
Water and Sewer Fund Downtown Development Authority $ 631
Building Authority Fund Downtown Development Authority 1,488
Total $ 2,099

These balances result from the time lag between the dates that goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and payments

between funds are made.

Note 6 - Long-term Debt

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 can be summarized as follows:

‘Governmental Activities

Beginning Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance One Year
Bonds and contracts payable -

General obligations $ 260,000 $ - % (125,000} $ 135,000 3 135,000
Installment purchase - 197,408 (37,220} 160,186 38,318
Accumulated compensated

absences 326,490 151,080 {130,344) 347,226 173,600

Total governmental
activities long-term debt  § 586,490 $ 348,486 $ (292,564) $ 642,412 $ 346,918
Business-type Activities
Beginning Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance One Year
Bonds and contracts payable:
General obligations 3 8,782,379 % - % (880,000} $ 7,902,379 3 905,000
Revenue honds 2,330,000 - (110,000) 2,220,000 115,000
Total bonds and contracts
payable 11,112,379 - {990,000) 10,122,379 1,020,000
Accumulated compensated
absences 110,355 29,144 {63,160) 76,339 38,200
Total business-type
activities long-term debt § 11,222,734 § 29144 §  (1,053160) % 10,198,718 $ 1,058,200
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Note 6 - Long-term Debt (Continued)
General Obligation Bonds and Contracts

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities. General obligations have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities.
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. County
contractual agreements and installment purchase agreements are also general obligations of the City.
General obligations outstanding at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Purpose Year Issued Interest Rates Mafuring Qutstanding
Governmental Activities
Building Authority Bonds 1969 5.2 2019 $ 100,000
Building Authority Bonds 2005 4.1 2019 35,000
Total governmental activities $ 135,000

Business-type Activities
State of Michigan Ravolving

Fund 2003 25 2025 3 7,902,379
Revenue Bonds

Revenue bonds involve a pledge of specific income derived from the acquired or constructed assets and
to pay debt service. Business-type activities utilize revenue bonds to finance the water and sewer system.
During fiscal year 2013, the City issued revenue bonds in the amount of $5,300,000. These bonds are
funded by the Drinking Water Revolving Fund, and the City received a loan forgiveness to the extent of
$2,650,000. The City has pledged substantially all revenue generated through the water and sewer
system, net of operating expenses, to repay the above water and sewer revenue bonds. Proceeds from
the bonds provided financing for the construction of the water and sewer mains. The bonds are payable
solely from the net revenue of the water and sewer system. As of June 30, 2018, the remaining principal
and interest to be paid on the revenue bonds total $2,720,875. During the current year, operating income
of the system (excluding depreciation) was $745,303.

Purpose Year Issued Interest Rates Maturing ~ Outstanding

Business-type Activities
Drinking Water Revolving Fund
Program #7314-01 2013 2.5 2034 $ 2,220,000

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
Total interest expense for the year related to governmental activities for the year was approximately

$16,500. Total interest incurred related to business-type activities for the year approximated $260,000.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above bonds and note obligations are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Years Ending )
June 30 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 173,318 $ 11,359 % 184,677 $ 1,020,000 $ 241,747 $ 1,261,747
2020 39,448 3,594 43,042 1,040,000 215,397 1,255,397
2021 40,611 2,431 43,042 1,070,000 189,078 1,259,078
2022 41,809 1,233 43,042 1,100,000 162,616 1,262,616
2023 - - - 1,125,000 134,809 1,259,809
2024-2028 - - - 3,832.379 288,336 4,120,715
Thereafter - - - 935,000 83,500 1,018,500
Total $ 205186 % 18617 $ 313,803 § 10,122,379 $ 1,315,483 $ 11,437,862
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Note 7 - Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions, and
employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The City
has purchased commercial insurance for workers' compensation, medical, health, life, and disability
claims, and participates in the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority's state pool for claims
relating to general law enforcement, emergency medical, public errors and omissions, and auto liabilities.
Settled claims relating to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage
in any of the past three fiscal years.

The Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority's State Pool program (the "Authority") operates as a
common risk-sharing management program for local units of government in Michigan. Member premiums
are used to purchase excess insurance coverage and to pay member claims in excess of deductible
amounts. A portion of the excess insurance coverage is underwritten by the Authority itself.

Note 8 - Joint Ventures

The City is a member of the Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County
(RRRASOC) and the South Lyon Area Recreation Authority (SLARA)., RRRASOC is incorporated by the
cities of Farmington, Farmington Hills, Novi, South Lyon, Southfield, Walled Lake, and Wixom, Michigan:
the Village of Milford, Michigan; and the Charter Township of Milford. SLARA is incorporated by the City of
South Lyon, Michigan and the Charter Townships of Lyon and Green Qak. The City appoints one member
to each of the joint ventures’ governing boards, which then approve the annual budgets. The joint ventures
receive their operating revenue from member contributions and miscellaneous income.

The City is unaware of any circumstances that would cause an additional benefit or burden to the
participating governments in the near future. Complete financial statements for RRRASCC can be
obtained from RRRASOC’s office at 20000 West 8 Mile Road, Southfield, Michigan 48075 and for SLARA
at SLARA’s office at 318 W. Lake Street, South Lyon, Michigan 48178.

During the year, the City contributed $17,417 to RRRASOC and $26,026 to SLARA. The City reported
equity interest in SLARA of $468,244 as of June 30, 2018.

Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
Plan Description

The City provides refiree healthcare benefits to eligible emplayees upon retirement in accordance with
established labor contracts. Under terms of the contracts, the City provides a flat monthly stipend up to
age 65 to be used to supplement insurance costs incurred for postemployment healthcare benefits. The
benefits are provided through a single-employer plan administered by the South Lyon City Council. No

assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No.
75.

Benefits Provided

All employees retiring under regular (normal), work-related disability, or workers' compensation retirement
are eligible to receive a stipend for healthcare coverage until age 65. Police regular (normal) retiraes are
required to have 25 years of service to be eligible for the employer stipend. General retirees have no
service requirement. Eligible police retiress receive a stipend of up to $700 per month for healthcare
premiums. Eligible general retirees receive a stipend of up to $500 per month for healthcare insurance
premiums. To the extent the stipend exceeds the monthly healthcare premiums, the remainder may be
used to offset spousal healthcare insurance premiums.
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June 30, 2018
Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The following members were covered by the contractual bensfit terms:

Date of member count June 30, 2018
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 1
Active plan members 40
Total plan members 41
Contributions

Retiree healthcare costs are funded by the City on a "pay-as-you-go" basis. The City has no obligation to
make contributions in advance of when the insurance premiums are due for payment, except for new
employees hired after July 1, 2018. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City paid
postemployment healthcare stipends of $9,000.

Total OPEB Liability

The City's total OPEB liability of $464,775 was measured as of June 30, 2018 and was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that dats.

Changes in the total OPEB liability during the measurement year were as follows:

Total OPEB Plan Net Net OPEB
Changes in Net OPEB Liability Liability Position Liability
Balanee at July 1, 2017 $ 801,126 $ - 3% 601,126
Changes for the year:
Service cost 28,001 - 28,001
“Interest 21,877 - 21,877
bifferences befween expected and actual
experisnce (167,358) - (167,358)
Changes in assumptions (9,871) - (9.871)
Contributions - Employer - 9,000 (9,000)
Benefit payments, including refunds (9,000) {9,000) -
Net changes (136,351) - {136,351)
Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 464775 $ - % 464,775

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized OPER expenée of $32,155.

At June 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferrad Deferred
Cutflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experisnce $ - % (150,622)
Changes in assumptions - {8,884)
Total , 3 - % {159,506}
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Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Years Ending
June 30 Amount

2019 $ (17,723)
2020 (17,723)
2021 {17,723)
2022 (17,723)
2023 (17,723)
Thereafter (70,891}
Total  § {159,506)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using an inflation
assumption of 3.75 percent; a healthcare cost trend rate of 9.0 percent for 2019, decreasing 0.5 percent
per year to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for 2028 and later years; and the RPH-2017 total dataset
mortality table. In addition, 100 percent of active employees currently receiving healthcare through the City
were assumed to elect retiree coverage. These assumptions were applied to all periods included in the

measurement, except for the discount rate, which was 3.58 percent in the calculation of the beginning of
year total OPEB liability.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at June 30, 2018 was 3.87 percent; however,
the discount rate used to measure the total OPERB liability at the beginning of the year was 3.58 percent.
The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 3.87
percent, as well as what the City's total OPEB fiability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
thatis 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

1 Percent Current 1 Percent

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(2.87%) (3.87%) (4.87%)
Total OPEB liability of the Plan $ 499,678 § 464,775 $ 431,746

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the healthcare cost trend rate of
9.0 percent, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare
cost frend rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

Current
1 Percent Healthcare Cost 1 Percent
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
(8.0% (9.0% (10.0%
Decreasingte  Decreasingto  Decreasing to
3.5%) 4.5%) 5.5%%})
Total OPEB liability of the Plan : $ 428341 % 464775 § 506,444
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Note 10 - Pension Plan
Plan Description

The City of South Lyon, Michigan participates in an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan (MERS) that covers all full-time
employees of the City. MERS was established as a statewide public employee pension plan by the
Michigan Legislature under PA 135 of 1945 and is administered by a nine-member retirement board..
MERS issues a publicly available financial report, which includes the financial statements and required
supplemental information of this defined benefit plan. This report can be obtained at
www.mersofmich.com or in writing to MERS at 1134 Municipal Way, Lansing, Michigan 48917.

Benefits Provided

The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PA 427 of
1984, as amended, established and amends the benefit provisions of the participants in MERS.

The MERS plan covers full-time employees at the City, including AFSCME, nonunion, police, patrolmen,
police command, and clerical employees. Subsequent to the measurement date of December 31, 2017,
the MERS defined benefit plan was closed to new entrants. New employees are eligible to participate in
the MERS defined contribution plus plan.

Retirement benefits are calculated as 2.5 percent of the employee's final five-year average compensation
times the employee's years of service, with a maximum of 80 percent of final average compensation.
Normal retirement age is 60 with early retirement at an unreduced benefit at age 55 with 25 years of
service or a reduced benefit at age 50 with 25 years of service or age 55 with 15 years of service.
Deferred retirement benefits vest after 10 years of credited service (eight years for nonunion employees),
but.are not paid until the date retirement would have occurred had the member remained an employee.
Employees are eligible for nonduty disability benefits after 10 years of service (etght years for nonunion
employses) and for duty-related disability benefits upon hire. Disability retirement benefits are determined
in the same manner as retirement benefits, but-are payable immediately and, if duty-related, without the
application of an actuarial reduction for retirement before age 60. An employee who leaves city service
may withdraw his or her contributions, plus any accumulated interest.

Benefit terms, within the parameters established by MERS, are generally established and amended by
authority of the City Council, generally after negotiations of these terms with the affected unions. Police
employee benefit terms may be subject to binding arbitration in certain circumstances.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At the December 31, 2017 measurement date, the following members were covered by the benefit terms:

inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 27
Inactive plan members entitled {0 but not yet receiving benefits 9
Active plan members 40

Total employees covered by the plan 76
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Note 10 - Pension Plan (Continued)
Contributions

State law requires public employers to make pension contributions in accordance with an actuarial
valuation. MERS hires an independent actuary for this purpose and annually contributes the amount
determined fo finance the costs of benefits eamned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City's required contribution is determined after
consideration of the required contribution rate of employees. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the
average active employee contribution rate was 1.72 percent of annual pay, and the City's average
contribution rate was 19.44 percent of annual payroll for the various employee groups. After the City
closed the plan subsequent to December 31, 2017, the City now pays a flat amount each month instead of
a percentage of payroll. Monthly payment amounts for the various divisions ranges from $2,720 to
$15,856 per month.

Net Pension Liability

The City has chosen to use the December 31 measurement date as its measurement date for the net
pension liability. The June 30, 2018 fiscal year end reported net pension liability was determined using a
measure of the total pension liability and the pension net position as of the December 31, 2017
measurement date. The December 31, 2017 measurement date total pension liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation performed as of that date.

Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows:

increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Net Net Pension
Changes in Net Pension Liability Liability Position Liability
Balance at Decemhber 31, 2016 $ 15,147,424 $§ 10,015,205 % 5,132,219
Changes for the year:
Service cost 274,113 - 274113
Interest 1,199,100 - 1,199,100
Changes in benefits {6,932) - {6,932}
Differences between expected and actual
experience (117,223) - (117,223)
Contributions - Employer - 520,687 (529,687)
Contributions - Employes - 34,784 {34,784)
Net investment income 1,332,498 (1,332,498)

Benefit payments, including refunds (591,459) (591,459)

Administrative expenses (21,070) 21,070
Net changes 757,599 1,284,440 (526,841)
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 15905023 $ 11,2098645 % 4,605,378
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Note 10 - Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $773,445. At June 30, 2018,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ - % (203,632)
Changes in assumptions 282,976 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan
investments - (217,822)
Employer contributions to the plan subsequent fo the measurement
date 268,302 -
Total 3 551,278 § (421,454)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows (note that employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will reduce the net pension liability and, therefore, will not be included in future pension

expense);
Years Ending
June 30 Amount
2019 % 120,172
2020 86,803
2021 (215,366)
2022 (130,087}
Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using an inflation
assumption of 2.50 percent, assumed salary increases (including inflation) of 3.75 percent, an investment
rate of return (net of investment expenses) of 8.00 percent, and the RP-2014 mortality tables. These
assumptions were applied to ali periods included in the measurement and are based on an experience
study conducted for the period from 2009-2013,

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee confributions will be made at the
current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at ratées equal fo the difference
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate.

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability,
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Note 10 - Pension Plan (Continued)
Investment Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return as of the December 31, 2017 measurement date for each major asset class
included in the pension plan's target asset allocation are summarized in the following table:

Long-term
Expected Real
Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return
Giobal equity 55.50 % 865 %
Global fixed income 18.50 3.76
Real assets 13.50 9.72
Diversifying strategies 12.50 7.50

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 8.0
percent, as well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1 percentage point lower (7.0 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (9.0 percent) than the current

rate:
1 Percent Current 1 Percent
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
{7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)
Net pension liability of the City 3 6,560,678 $ 4605378 3 2,949,298

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued financial
report found at www.mersofmich.com. The plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same
basis used by the plan. The plan uses the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual
basis of accounting. Investments are stated at fair value. Contribution revenue is recorded as
contributions are due, pursuant to legal requirements. Benefit payments and refunds of employee
contributions are recognized as expense when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Note 11 - Tax Abatements

The City uses the Industrial Facilitiss Tax exemption (PA 198 of 1974) to enter into agreements with local
businesses to construct new industrial facilities or rehabilitate historical facilities. Under the program, the
City grants reductions of 50 percent of the property tax bill for new property (or it can freeze taxable values
for rehabilitation properties) for up to 12 years,

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City abated $12,197 of taxes under this program. There are
no provisions to recapture taxes; however, the abatement may be eliminated if taxes are not paid fimely.

There are no significant abatements made by other govermnmenits that reduce the City's tax revenue.
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Note 12 - Change in Accounting

During the current year, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accouniing and Financial Reporting for
Posternployment Benefits Other than Pensions, which replaces GASB Statement No. 45. As a result, the
government-wide statements and proprietary funds now include a liability for the City's estimated unfunded
OPEB costs. Some of the changes in this net OPEB liability will be recognized immediately as part of the
OPEB expense measurement, and part will be deferred and recognized over future years. Refer to the
other postemployment benefit plan disclosure (Note 9) for further details. This change does not impact the
modified accrual funds.

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 have been restated in order o adopt GASB
Statement No. 75. The effect of this hew standard was a decrease in net position to record the net OPEB
liability at June 30, 2017. Additionally, the net OPEB obligation previously recorded in the government-
wide statements and proprietary funds in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45 has been eliminated,
and the overall result was an increase in net position as of the beginning of the current fiscal year.

The net effect of this change is as follows:

Business-type

Activities
Governmental {(Water and
Activities Sewer Fund)

Net position - June 30, 2017 - As previously reported $ 22,306,409 $ 26,360,828
Adjustment for GASB Statement No. 75 - To record the net OPER

liability (477,718) (123,408)
Adjustment for GASB Statement No. 75 - To eliminate net OPEB )

obligation under GASB Statement No. 45 375,300 96,051
Net position - June 30, 2017 - As restated § 22293991 $ 28,334,371
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Required Supplemental Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

Revenue
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Licenses and permits
Investment income and cther
Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current services:
General government
Public safety:
Police
Fire
Ambulance
Community maintenance and
development:
Public works
Cemetery
Recreation and culture:
Parks and recraation
Cable
Historical
Cultural arts
Public transportation

Total expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning of year

Fund Balance - End of year

See note to required supplemental information.

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Variance with
Amended Amended
Original Budget Budget Actual Budget
$ 3885636 $ 3,913,340 $ 3,930,894 § 17,554
955 416 1,152,890 1,152,003 (887)
80,000 71,500 82,851 11,351
30,750 30,750 39,238 8,488
353,500 445 200 467,266 22,086
4,000 4,000 13,529 9,529
184,800 224,800 238,198 13,398
5,494,102 5,842,480 5,923,979 81,499
1,250,429 1,363,325 1,396,927 {(33,602)
2,585,880 2,532,204 2,365,380 166,824
468,130 475,380 469,363 6,017
2,075 1,575 1,507 68
807,000 778,900 719,629 59,271
100,964 114,174 110,960 3,214
162,260 153,805 145,682 8,123
4,275 3,550 4,321 (771)
31,375 28775 23,679 3,096
4720 1,220 952 268
76,359 76,359 76,175 184
5,493 467 5,527 267 5,314,575 212,692
635 315,213 609,404 294,191
2,664,475 2,664,475 2,664,475 -
$ 2665110 $ 2979688 $ 3,273,879 $ 294 191
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Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

Last Four Fiscal Years (schedule is built prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68)

2018 2017 2016 2015
Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 274113 $ 283,687 § 256,313 3% 255,907
Interest 1,199,100 1,141,285 1,084,707 1,004,596
Changes in benefit terms (6,932) {270) - -
Differences between expected and actual
experience (117,223) (113,562) (104,289) -
Changes in assumptions - - 707,441 -
Benefit payments, including refunds {591,459) (575,867) (578,810) (485,354)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 757,599 735,273 1,345,362 775,149
Total Pension Liability - Beginning of year 15,147 424 14,412,151 13,066,789 12,291,640
Total Pension Liability - End of year $ 159056,023 § 15147,424 $ 14,412151 $ 13,086,789
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer $ 529,687 $ 470,446 $ 420,267 $ 417 111
Contributions - Employes 34,784 29,301 27,094 27,802
Net investment income (loss) 1,332,498 1,035,110 (140,969) 562,278
Administrative expenses (21,070) (20,433) (20,522) {20,698)
Benefit payments, including refunds {591,459) {575,867) (578,810) (485,354)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1,284,440 938,557 (292,940) 501,139
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of
year 10,015,205 9,076,648 9,369,588 8,868,449

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of year $_ 11,299645 $§ 10,015,205 $§ 9,076,648 $ 9,369,588

City's Net Pension Liability - Ending $_ 4605378 § 5132,219 $ 5335503 $ 3,697,201
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of Total Pension Liability 71.04 % 66.12 % 62.98 % 71.71 %
Covered Payroll $ 2643114 $ 2725500 $ 2533242 $ 2,528,331
City's Net Pension Liability as a Percentage

of Covered Employee Payroll 174.24 % 188.30 % 210.62 % 1486.23 %

See note to required supplemental information. 38
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Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of Pension Contributions

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Years Ended June 30

2018 2017 208 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Actuarially determined contribution § 549604 $ 501,517 § 435,641 § 410,024 § 405981 $ 386618 § 388304 § 372,715 § 358,241 $ 365,051
Contributions in relation fo the
actuarially determined

cantribution 549,604 501,517 435,641 410,024 405,981 386,618 588,304 372715 358,241 365,051
Contribution Deficiency $ - § - % - % - - 8 - % - 8 - $ - % -
Covered Employee Payroll $2,643,114 $2725500 $2,533,242 $2,528,331 $2,472,858 $2,673,263 $2.666450 $2,713,288 $2,868,101 $2,836,045
Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered Employee Payroll 20.79 % 18.40 % 17.20 % 16,22 % 16.42 % 14.46 % 14.56 % 13.74 % 12.49 % 12.87 %

Notes to Schedule of Pension Contributions
Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions:

Valuation date Actuarially determined centribution rafes are caloulated as of December 31, which is 18 months prior to the beginning of the fiscal
year in which the contributions are required

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age

Amortization method Level percentage of payroli, opan

Remaining amortization period 21 years

Asset valuation methed Five-year smoothed market

Inflation 3-4 percent

Salary increase 3.75 percent average, including inflation

Investment rafe of return 7.75 percent

Retirement age Experience-based tables of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition
Mortality 50 percent male - 50 percent female klend of the 2014 Group Annuity Mortalily Table
Other information None

See note to required supplemental information. 39
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Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
No Trust

Last Fiscal Year (schedule is built prospectively upon implementation of GASB 75)

2018

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost $ 28,001

Interest 21,877

Differences between expected and actual experience (167,358)

Changes in assumptions (9,871)

Benefit payments, including refunds {9,000)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (136,351)
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning of year 601,126
Total OPEB Liability - End of year 3 464,775
Covered Employee Payroll $ 2,084,986
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 22.29 %

See note 1o required supplementai information. 40



City of South Lyon, Michigan
' Note to Required Supplemental Information

June 30, 2018
Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for the General Fund and all special revenue funds.

The annual budget is prepared by the city manager and submitted to the City Council at its meeting nearest the
third Monday in April of each year. The budget is adopted by the City Council no fater than the second regular City
Council meeting in May. Subsequent amendments are approved by the City Council. Amendments may be made
by the City Council up until the last day of the fiscal year. The budget has been adopted on an activity basis;
expenditures at this ievel in excess of amounts budgeted are a violation of Michigan law.

Unexpended appropriations iapse at ysar end. The amount of encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2018 has
not been calculated. During the current year, the budget was amended in a legally permissible manner.

A comparison of the actual results of operations to the budgeted amounts (at the leve! of control adopted by the
City Council) for the General Fund is presented as required supplemental information. Information comparing
other special revenue funds activity to the respective budgets can be obtained at City Hall.
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Special Revenue Funds

Community
Cemetery Development
Major Road Local Road  Drug Forfeiture Perpetual Care  Block Grant

Assets
Cash and investments $ 1,802,024 $ 315612 % 50,223 § 779,090 § -
Receivables - Due from :
other governmental units 101,462 43,860 - - -
Due from other funds 9,314 3,195 - - -
Prepaid expenses 3,682 1,984 - - -
Land held for resale - - - - -
Total assets $ 1,916,482 $ 364,651 $ 80,223 § 779,090 $ -
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 2772 % 757 $ - 8 - 8 -
Due to other governmental
units - - - - -
Due to other funds 19,474 28,700 - - -
Accrued liabilities and other 1,725 1,680 - - -
Total liabilities 23,971 31,137 - - -
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Land held for resale - - - - -
Prepaids 3,682 1,984 - - -
Restricted:
Roads 1,888,829 331,530 - - -
Police - - 50,223 - -
Cemetery perpetual care - - - 779,090 -
Committed:

Capital improvements - - - - -
Land acquisition “ - - - -
Equipment replacement - - - - -
Assigned - Debt - - - - -

Total fund
balances 1,892 511 333,514 50,223 779,090 -

Total liabilities and
fund balances $ 1,916,482 $ 364,651 $ 50,223 § 779,080 $ -
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Other Supplemental Information
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2018

Debt Service
Fund Capital Project Funds
Total Nonmajor
Building Capital Equipment Land Governmental
Authority Fund Improvement Replacement  Acquisition Funds

$ 28,563 $ 1,835,036 $ 462,042 $ 88,189 § 5,360,779

- - - - 145,322

_ ] - 12,509
- - - - 5,666
- - - 53,000 53,000

$ 28,563 $§ 1,835,036 § 462,042 § 141,189 $ 5,677,276

$ - 3 - b - % - § 3,529

- 318 - - 318
- 148,174
- - - - 3,405

- 318 - - 55,426

- - - 53,000 53,000
- - - - 5,666

- - - - 2,220,359
- - - - 50,223
- - - - 779,080

- 1,834,718 - -
- - - 88,189 88,189
- - 462,042 - 462,042
28,663 - - - 28,563

1,834,718

28,563 1,834,718 462,042 141,189 5,521,850

$ 28,563 $§ 1,835,036 § 462,042 3 141,189 $ 5,577,276
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Special Revenue Funds

Community
Cemetery Development
Major Road Local Road  Drug Forfeiture Perpetual Care Block Grant

Revenue
Property taxes 3 - § - % .- 8 - % -
Intergovernmenial:
Federal grants - - - - 75,279
State and local sources:
Act 51 gas and weight

tax 698,267 350,492 - - -
Metro act 30,233 - - - -
Local grants and
contributions - - - - -
Charges for services - - - - -
Investment income and other 8,334 1,843 3,767 68,967 ~
Total revenue 736,834 352,335 3,767 68,967 75,279

Expenditures
Current services:
Community maintenance
and development;
Sireets 283,577 217,330 - - -
Stormwater drainage 9,656 13,284 - - -
Other professional
services - - - - -
Community and
economic development - - - - 54,205
Debt service:
Principal - - - - -
Interest cn long-term debt - - - - -

Total expenditures 273,273 230,614 - - 54,205
Net Change in Fund Balances 463,561 121,721 3,767 68,967 21,074

Fund Balances - Beginning of
year 1,428,950 211,793 46,456 710,123 {21,074)
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Other Supplemental Information
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Debt Service
Fund Capital Project Funds
Total Nonmajor
Building Capital Equipment Land Governmental
Authority Fund Improvement _Replacement  Acquisition Funds
$ 102,188 $ 198,872 $ - $ - % 301,060
- - - - 75,279
- - - - 1,048,759
- - - - 30,233
32,635 - - - 32,635
- - 152,105 - 152,105
521 8,775 2415 11,013 103,635
135,344 205,647 154,520 11,013 1,743,706
- - - - 480,907
- - - - 22,980
- 1,930 - - 1,930
- - - 17,281 71,486
125,000 - 37,220 - 162,220
13,600 - 5,822 - 19,422
138,600 1,930 43,042 17,281 758,945
(3,256) 203,717 111,478 (6,268) 084,761
31,819 1,631,001 350,564 147 457 4,537,089

$ 28,563 § 1834718 $ 462,042 $ 141,189 §  5/521,850
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Community Maintenance
Public Safety and Dewelopment

General

Government Police Fire Ambutance Cemetery Public Works

Expenditures
Salaries and wages $ 364,723 $1,420,297 $258,528 § - $ 67,003 $ 182,542
Salaries and wages - Mechanic - - - - 34,912
Reimbursement of mechanic wages - - - - {34,912)
Fringe benefits 174,948 612,169 28,905 - 13,870 162,310

Uniforms & Cleaning Allowance 18,400 13,473 - 5,507
Tuition reimbursement - 1,215 - - - -
Office supplies 4,566 4,784 4,481 - - 624
Operating expenses 22,679 15,557 9,342 - 13,068 14,053
Ammunition - 5,977 - - - -
Professional Sendces 304,580 10,335 - - - -
Contractual Senices 114,065 119,894 36,767 - 1,502 12,980
Prisoner Board - - - - - -
Auditor 28,260 - - - - -
Ptanning Consultant 21,315 - - - - -
Elections 8,015 - - - - -
Computers 7,692 8,478 5,268 - - 2,195
Legal Fees 130,100 32,109 - - - -
Memberships & Dues 12,432 540 4,491 - - 663
Radio Maintenance - 147 - - - -
Telephone 7,615 13,781 1,321 - 1,027 5,083
Gas & Uil 34 25,183 7,847 - 1,380 23,630
Transportation & Mileage 7,726 - - - - 155
Vehicle Maintenance 326 18,882 25,644 - - 103,659
Community Promotions 62,255 - 816 - - -
Printing 7,432 - - - - -
Publishing 13,530 - - - - -
Insurance & Bonds 52,315 23,688 22,387 75 625 14,093
Utilities 21,673 11,960 9,292 1,432 267 15,990
Street Light Expenditures - - - - - 113,540
Repairs & Maintenance - - 4,381 - 1,419 3,616
Building Maintenance 2,880 8,154 8,657 - - 9,772
NPDES Phase Il Stormwater - - - - - 15,5HM
Equipment Rental - - - - 4,600 10,000
Hydrant Rental - - 2,500 - - -
Education/Training 3,954 3,999 14,971 - - 1,080
Witness fees - 84 - - - -
Miscellaneous Expense 119 - - - - -
Contribution-Solid Waste 17,417 - - - - -
Capital Outlay - - - “ - -
Beautlfication 5,392 - - - - -
Land Improvements - - - - - 20,861
Rental Properties 884 - - - - -
Equipment Miscellaneous - 8,747 10,392 - 6,189 1,705
Capital Equipment - - - - - -
Total expenditures $1,396,927 $2,365,380 $469,363 $ 1 ,507 $110,960 $ 719,629
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Other Supplemental Information
Schedule of Expenditures — General Fund

June 30, 2018

Recreation and Culture Total
Parks and Public Cultural Cable
Recreation  Transportation Historical Arts  Commission 2018 2017

3 72,235 % - ¥ 4617 5 - b 285 $2,369,945 $ 2,334,751
- - - - - 34,912 37,598

- - - - - (34,912) (37,598)
22,951 - - - - 1,015,153 1,110,279
- - - - - 37,380 41,025

- - - - - 1,215 -

- - ~ 40 - 14,4495 13,316
2,747 - - 152 - 77,598 81,318
“ - - - - 5,977 5,421
13,169 - 2,858 13 - 330,955 263,503
- 76,175 1,583 - - 362,966 419,611
- - - - - - 6
- - - - - 28,260 37,360
- - - - - 21,315 35,240
- - - - - 8,015 12,605
- - - - - 23,633 14,493
- - - - - 162,209 188,586
- - - - - 18,126 13,942
- - - - - 147 2,1
- - - - - 28,827 26,462
4,168 - - - - 62,252 56,314
- - - - - 7,881 6,742
- - - - - 148,511 164,449
- - - 606 - 63,677 54,710
- - - - - 7,432 6,513
- - - - - 13,530 16,472
916 - 888 - - 114,987 114,461
835 - 5,895 - - 67,344 65,035
- - - - - 113,540 115,661
9,801 - - - - 19,217 30,439
- - 7,521 - - 36,884 41,517
- - - - - 15,591 7,004
11,025 - - - - 25,625 24,835
- - - - - 2,500 2,500
- - - - - 23,984 32,040
- - - - - 84 163
839 - - 141 - 1,099 2,578
- - - - - A7,417 17,755
- - - - 4,036 4,038 25,234
- - - - - 5,392 6,789
- - 317 - - 21,178 33,716
- - - - - 884 21,616
- - - - - 28,033 36,626
6,996 - - - - 6,996 88,740

$ 1458682 $ 76,175 § 23,679 $ 952 § 4,321 $5,314,575 $ 5,571,928
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Other Supplemental Information
Schedule of Expenditures by Activity
Major and Local Roads Funds

June 30, 2018
Major Roads Fund
Drainage
Professional Street Street Routine Traffic Snow Plowing and
Senices Consfruction  Maintenance Senices & Removal Backsloping Total

Wages and salaries $ - $ - % 85471 $ 2477 & 34,270 $ 5219 % 157,437
Fringe benefits - - 30,396 1,157 15,289 2,297 49,149
Operating expense - - 5,904 12,345 45,540 2,180 65,969
Professional senices 5,590 126 - - - - 5,716
Contractual senices - - - - - - -
Insurance & bonds - - 56 - - . 56
Traffic signals - - - 5,273 - - 5,273
Repairs and maintenance - - 13,173 - - - 13,173
Equipment charges - - 14,000 - 12,500 - 26,500

Total expenditures $ 5590 § 126 $ 129,000 $ 21,252 % 107,609 % 9,696 $ 273,273

Local Roads Fund
Drainage
Profassional Street Street Routine Trafic Snow and
Senices Construction  Maintenance Senices Plowing Backstoping Total

Wages and salaries $ - % - $ 67,232 § 2,376 % 28,536 § 7381 % 105,532
Fringe benefits - - 30,378 1,073 12,573 3,203 47,227
Operating expense - - 5,901 534 21,870 2214 30,519
Professicnal senices 5,680 8,784 - - - - 12,374
Contractual senices - - - - - - -
Insurance & bonds - - 56 - - - 56
Repairs ahd maintenance - - 5,438 - - 438 5,826
Equiprment charges - - 15,480 - 13,500 - 28,980

Total expenditures $ 5590 $ 6,784 $ 124,493 $ 3,983 § 76,479 $ 13,284 3 230,614
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Other Supplemental Information
Schedule of Operating Expenses
Proprietary Fund — Water and Sewer Fund

June 30, 2018
Activity Activity Total
Walter Sanitary
Distribution Water Wastewater Sewer Solid Waste Water/Sewer
System Repair System Repair Collection  Construction 2018 2017
Persannel senices: '
Salaries and wages $ 210778 § 13520 $ 324388 § 48957 § - $ - § 597,653 § 621,925
Fringe benefits 134,845 38,113 192,383 41,845 - - 407,186 416,735
Total personnal senices 345,623 51,633 516,781 90,802 - - 1,004,839 1,038,660
Equipment repairs and maintenance:
Equipment maintenance 20,594 43,303 3,361 40,463 - - 107,721 116,105
Building maintenance 23,720 - 90,078 - - “ 113,798 123,947
Total equipment repairs and maintenance 44,314 43,303 93,439 40,463 - - 221,519 240,052
Publi¢ utilities:
Electric and gas 96,877 - 225,432 - - - 322,309 318,755
Telephone 2,279 - 4,108 - - - 6,385 6,031
Total public utilities 99,156 - 229,538 - - - 328,684 324,786
Refisse collection - - - - 503,262 - 503,262 503,350
Depreciation 720,793 - 735,328 - - - 1,456,121 1,441,407
Other senices and charges - Professional sendces 33,820 538 47,134 3,731 - - 85,221 40,007
Supplies;
Office 625 “ 720 - - - 1,345 1,755
Operating 68,005 1,611 126,735 8,279 B - 204,720 177,384
Computer 1,152 - 1,608 - - . 2,761 506
Total supplies 69,872 1,611 128,084 8,279 - - 208,826 179,645
Insurance 14,014 - 13,564 - - - 27,678 27,491
Other B50 - 679 - - - 1,329 13,017
Total operating expenses $1,328,242 § 97,083 $1,765527 § 143275 $ 503,262 § - $ 3,837,389 $ 3,808,415
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Statistical Section
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City of South Lyon, Michigan
Schedule of Taxes Levied, Collected, and

Returned Delinquent — 2017 Tax Roll

June 30, 2018

Returned Percent
Final Lewy Taxes Collected Delinquent Collected

Taxable Value: $ 343,726,300

City of South Lyon $ 5,198,379 § 4,941,968 § 256,411 95.07
Specials 3,332 814 2,518 24.43
Downtown Dewvelopment Authority 21,682 22,091 {509) 102.36
Administration fee 96,054 94,481 1,573 98.36
Oakland Community College 530,418 524,712 5,706 98.92
South Lyon Community Schools 4,271,857 4,194,775 77,082 98.20
State education 2,032,637 2,004,775 27,862 98.63
Zac Authority 33,528 32,721 807 97.59
Art institute 67,091 65,494 1,597 97.62
Huron Clinton Metro Park 72,973 71,474 1,499 97.95
Intermediate School District 1,131,715 1,115,847 15,868 98.60
Oakland County 1,377,620 1,362,833 14,787 98.93

Total $ 14,837,186 $ 14,431,985 § 405,202 97.27
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking

June 30, 2018
A. Taxable Value — Fiscal Year 2017-2018 - $343,726,300

B. Taxable Value by Use and Class — Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Percent of
Taxable Percent of
Use Taxable Value Value SEV SEV
Commercial $ 30,950,330 9.00 $ 34,139,690 7.74
Industriaf 8,850,920 2.57 9,240,630 2.08
Residential 295,279,210 85.91 389,635,890 88.22
Comm PP 4,343,910 1.26 4,343 910 0.98
Utility 4,292,930 1.25 4,292,930 0.97
Total $ 343,726,300 100.00 § 441,653,050 100.00
Class
Real property $ 339,382,390 98.74 % 437,309,140 99.02
Personal property 4,343,910 1.26 4,343,910 0.28
Total $ 343,726,300 100.00 § 441,653,050 100.00

C & D. Property Tax Rates by Governmental Unit - Fiscal Year 2017-2018

City of South Lyon Rate City of South Lyon Rate
General operation 11.0500  Huron Clinton Authority 0.2368
Capital improvements 0.5838 Qakland County 4.0400
Building Authority 0.3000 Intermediate schools 3.3079
Debt senice - Sewer G.O. 3.3000  OQakland Community College 1.6555

Zoo Authority 0.0980

Oakland County P&R 0.2368

South Lyon Community Schools 18.0000

Art Institute 0.1961

State education 6.0000

South Lyon school debt 9.0000

Total City of South Lyon 15.2338 Total governmental units 59.4490
District library 1.0877
Library voted 0.4830
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City of South Lyon, Michigan
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (Continued)

June 30, 2018

E. Property Tax Collections — Fiscal Year 2017-2018 (as of 3/1/2018) — 97.27%
F. Ten Largest Taxpayers — Fiscal Year 2017-2018

Principal Product

Taxpayer or Senice Taxable Value

Roco Brookwood Farms LLC Apartments 3 4,444 230
Colonial Acres Dev Phase 5 ‘ Co-op 13,406,800
Colonial Acres Dev Co Co-op 5,508,110
Brookdale Assn Ltd Partner Apartments 3,730,250
DTE Industrial 3,130,800
Michigan Seamiess Tube Industrial 2,610,710
Locp Waters Edge Apariments 1,803,040
Showerman Investment Co Commercial 1,347,040
Beztak Commercial 1,337,720
Gateway Commons DevLLC Commercial 1,199,840

Total $ 38,518,540

G. Distributable Aid — State-Shared Revenue - Fiscal Year 2017-2018 - $989,507
H. Legal Debt Margin

Pursuant to the statutory and constitutional debt provisions set forth herein, the following table reflects the
amount of additional debt the City may legally incur as of June 30, 2018:

Debt limit (1) $ 44,165,305
Debt outstanding $ 10,417,565

Less exempt debt 8,037,379 2,380,186
Legal debt margin $ 41,785,119

(1) 10 percent of $441,653,050, which is the City's SEV for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. See
"Property Valuations” herein.

Source: Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan and the City of South Lyon
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (Continued)

June 30, 2018
Debt Statement
The following table reflects a breakdown of the City’s direct debt as of June 30, 2018.

To the extent necessary, the City may levy taxes on all taxable property within its boundaries without limitation as
to rate or amount fo pay the principal of and interest due on the bonds in the following table, which are designated
as “UT." However, the City's ability to levy tax to pay the debt service on the bonds, which are designated as “LT,”
is subject to applicable charter, statutory, and constitutional limitations.

City Direct Debt Gross Seli-supporting Net

Building Authority Bonds:

Dated March 27, 2003 (UT) - 3 7,902,379 $ 7,902,379 § -
Subtotal 7,902,379 7,902,379 -

Building Authority Bonds:
Dated July 8, 2005 {LT) 35,000 35,000 -
Dated July 1, 1999 {LT) 100,000 100,000 -
Subtotal 135,000 135,000 -

Installment Purchase Obligations:
2016 Street Sweeper 160,186 - 160,186

Revenue Bonds - 2012 Drinking Water

Rewolving Fund 2,220,000 - 2,220,000
Total $ 10,417,565 $ 8,037,379 $ 2,380,186
Per capita net City direct debt (1) $ 210.13
Percent of net direct debt to SEV (2} 0.54%

(1) Based on the City's 2010 census population of 11,327

(2) Based on $441,653,050, which is the City's SEV for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. See “Property
Valuations™ herein.
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City of South Lyon, Michigan

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (Continued)

June 30, 2018
City's Share as
Pearcent of
Overlapping Debt (3) Gross Gross Net

South Lyon Schools 159,380,000 17.42% $ 27,758,336
Oakland County 340,795,795 0.68% 2,307,628
Oakland Intermediate School District 44,695 641.28% 266,619

Total 500,220,490 $ 30,352,583
Per capita net overapping debt (1) (3) $ 2,679.67
Percent of net owerlapping debt to SEV (2) 6.87%
Per capita net direct and overlapping debt (1) $ 2,889.80
Percent of net direct and overlapping debt to SEV (2) 7.41%

(1) Based on the City's 2010 Census population of 11,327

{2) Based on $441,653,050, which is the City's SEV for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. See “Property

Valuations” herein.

(3) Overlapping debt is the portion of another taxing unit's debt for which property taxpayers of the City are liable

in addition to debt issued by the City
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Dear Community Development Partner:

Our Community Development Block Grant partnership relies on a mutual commitment to affirmatively
further fair housing and attain equal access to housing for all. To support this goal, the County is
conducting an “Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice”. Citizen participation is a key element
of this effort.

Oakland County Community & Home Improvement is hosting a series of 6 public forums to hear from
citizens on:

e Awareness of people’s rights under fair housing laws

® Access to housing of their choice

* What can be done locally to address impediments to fair housing choice

Local CDBG representatives are asked to invite citizens, local officials and staff AND attend one or more
of the public forums. Please help promote the dates, times and locations of the six meetings to your
residents. Promotion can include:

» Distribute at public meetings or facilities where citizens frequent
¢ Post fliers on your website or cable network or in newsletters

e Announce through social media

* Post in strategic public locations

Please use the attached flyer to invite community members. Qakland County Community & Home
Improvement will also be sending hard copies for distribution.

Thank you for your commitment to furthering fair housing on behalf of your citizens!
Respectfully,

Karry L. Rieth
Manager
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Oakland County
is committed
to affirmatively
furthering fair
housing.

- OakGov. gomy/.
FatrHous:nqSurvey

Dld you know that you have a
right to choose housing - free
from discrimination? '

- In October, help us identify whether.barriers to fait
- housmg choice exist in Oakland County Your- inputis -

very. |mportant

Fair housmg laws apply to rental housmg, homes for

sale, advertlsmg, home Ioans and home insurance

: Federal and state fair housmg acts: prohiblt
- dlscr:mmatlon in housing based on racg, color, _
. _'-natlonal origin, religion, sex, family status, dlsabillty,
: age he:ght we;ght and marital status '

'There are several ways you can part|0|pate o

- o Attend a Pubilc Forum : o

- Ifyow wou!d like to share your: housmg experlences R

- along with feliow residents i inan mteractlve enwronment -
* attend orie of the publrc forums: .

o '_0ctober22 1 10:30 aum. -1230pm
“ Springfield Townshnp Library. -
R 200 Dawsburg Road, Dawsburg

‘Octobér 22 | 6=8: 00 P,

.--'Southf:eld Parks & Ftecreatlon Bulldmg _

.. Roam 223 26000 Evergreen ‘Road, Southﬁeld
' ,,Sponsored by C:ty of Southf’ eld

- October 23 | 9-11:00am. - B
_ szom Clty Hall | 49045 Pontiac T?an' foom

October23 | 1—300pm

: _"OI‘IOI’I Center | 1335 Joslyn Road, Lake Onon

" ‘November 12 | 6:00 ~ 8:00 p.m.
- ‘Madison Heights City Hall -
300w 1 3 Mfle Road Madrson Herghts

‘November 13 ] 6:00 - 8:00 p.m.
‘Pontiac Library, Roorn 2225

60 E Pike Street Pont:ac -

(2 ] Complete and Return the Survey by 1 1/22/19

-Share your experiences on gettmg access 1o housmg :

Your-answers are anonymous. The survey should take
less than 10 minutes to complete. : )
OakGov com/ FaerousmgSurvey

e Hear the Results '
~Plari to attend the public preser;tatlon of the “Draft

AnaIySIs of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice”

‘hosted by the Citizens Advisory Council for

Commun]ty & Home Emprovement

January 22 | 9:30 - 11:30 a.m.
L. Brooks Patterson Bmldmg

-Gonference Center, Bu:]dmg 41 West

2100 Pontiac Lake Road Waterford

mfo, \IlSlt Questl : e
(888} B50- 900 ext 80493 :
- chi@oakgovicom -



